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Corporate Profile
DA BN

MOBI Development Co,, Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 16 December 2002. The
shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange™) on |7 December 2009 (Stock Code: 947).

We operate through our subsidiaries MOBI Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. ("MOBI Shenzhen”), MOBI Telecommunications Technologies (Ji An) Co., Ltd.
("MOBI Jian") and MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co., Ltd. ("MOBI Xian").

We are one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication antennas and
base station Radio Frequency (“RF”) subsystems in China. Our business consists of
the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of antennas, base station RF subsystem
and solutions that are the required components of mobile communication coverage
systems, including, wireless access systems (WiFi and PHS), 2G (GSM and CDMA),
3G (TD-SCDMA, CDMA 2000, W-CDMA and WiMax), satellite communication and
microwave transmission networks. We sell our products to network operators in
China and overseas directly for deployment into the networks they are constructing
and operating. We also sell our products to some of the world's leading wireless
network solution providers who incorporate our products into their wireless
coverage solutions, such as their proprietary base stations, which they then sell to

network operators worldwide.

We are committed to providing quality and sophisticated products and building long

term relationships with our customers.
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Corporate In'fom?'ation
RAEER

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KYI-1104, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1902, Mass Mutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors
Qu Degian

Xing Qibin

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lee Wai Kuen
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Corporate Information
REEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Hu Xiang
Lee Wai Kuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Zhang Han (Chairman)
Li Tianshu

Bao Fan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Li Tianshu (Chairman)

Zhang Han

Bao Fan

Qu Degian

Yan Andrew Y.

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
China Merchants Bank
I/F, Wenhua Building, Shennan Road East, Shenzhen, China

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISER

Jones Day

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.mobi-antenna.com

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR INVESTOR RELATIONS
Telephone: 86-755-86186100 (ext 1316) Mr. Tang Hanyi

Email: ir@mobi-antenna.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 947
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Financial Highlights
M HME

Analysis of revenue by business type Analysis of revenue by customer type
REBDEHORA D REFERIFENBRADT

(In RMB million) (In RMB million)
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KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES TENKEE

(All amounts are expressed in RMB’ million unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBI  MELEHUAREBET
271

2009 2008
2009 F 2008
Revenue WA 980.2 671.2
Gross profit EF 280.5 183.3
Profit before taxation 75 A1) %) 126.4 69.5
Net profit attributable to shareholders PR 5R 415 428 107.5 61.9
Total assets BEE 1,601.8 7935
Net current assets MBEEFHE 775.8 195.2
Net assets attributable to shareholders BREELEEFHE 919.0 327.6
Inventories tumover days FEBEXRY 140 131
A/R turnover days FE Wt AR B 8 K E 163 167
AJP turnover days e BR A 8 R 8 213 219
Current ratio MENLE K 2.1x 1.4 x
Gearing BRAGLE 7.9% 9.3%
No. of issued shares, million shares * BERTEROHEE (BEK*) 705.5 526.5
Net assets value per share, RMB BREEFE (AREET) 1.30 0.62
Basic EPS, RMB cents BREXEF (ARED) 26.63 15.41
Return on average equity S S NIk 17.2% 20.4%

*  For comparison purpose, the number of issued shares as at 31 December 2008 is * o BRIELE - K20085F12A31BH B EITRN
adjusted by the capitalization issue and conversion of shares pursuant to the initial HE  LARTERAAEE ([ERAME
public offering (the "IPO”) of the Company. S MBRBEITRBRN B AR -

ELBERBRAR 5
2009 F ¥



6

Chairman’s Statement
FERETE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the business development of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009 (“Year 2009").

Year 2009 was an extraordinary year, the world economic environment was still
affected by the financial crisis. However, with advantage in boarder customer base
and advance technologies, the Group had overcome difficulties and achieved fast
development in overall business. In addition, the successful listing of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009 created a solid

foundation for the future development.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group's operating revenue for Year 2009 amounted to approximately
RMB980.2 million, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 46.0%, while
net profit grew by approximately 73.5% to approximately RMBI107.5 million.

With significant increase in business volume, the Group can still maintain a healthy
level of cash flow and we have achieved a pre-tax net cash inflow from operation

for many years.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Against the background of the global financial tsunami and intense competition, by
utilizing the Group’s merits in customers and technologies, enhance the cooperation
with worldwide leading customers, keep on research on new products, the Group
achieved further development in customer relationship and technologies
advancement.

As a result of the grim impact of the financial crisis, which made some countries cut
or delay their plans on telecommunication expenses in international market, the
Group's exports sale recorded a decrease of approximately 43.2%, which amounted
to approximately RMBI16.3 million in Year 2009. However, the demand of products
of the Group in the international market has recovered gradually near the end of
2009 when the impact of economic crisis is faded. In the domestic market, the
Group maintained its presence steadily in the market of PRC network operators as
well as network solution providers and the Group is one of the most gained
beneficiaries in China 3G network constructions. The domestic sale surged by
approximately 85.3% to approximately RMB863.9 million.

The Group succeeded a balanced customer base. The Group achieve a strong
revenue growth from numerous well-known customers. Among them, sale revenue
from network operators and network solution providers grew by approximately
[31.3% and approximately 19.4% to approximately RMB369.4 million and
approximately 610.8 million, respectively. Meanwhile, the Group enhanced its
cooperation relationship with these well-known worldwide customers.

In Year 2009, the Group recorded significant growth in products of major network
systems such as GSM, CDMA, TD-SCDMA, W-CDMA and CDMA2000. Our product
groups in antenna system, base station RF subsystem and coverage extension
solutions have recorded a revenue growth of approximately 62.4%, 15.2%, 398.6%,

respectively.

In addition, the Group strengthened research and development capabilities,
optimized management system, and kept enhancing core competitive power in Year
2009.

DIVIDEND AND BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03 per share out of
distributable reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December
2009 and a bonus issue of | new share of US$0.000001 each in the share capital of
the Company (“Share”) for every 10 issued Shares held by shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on | June 2010 (“Bonus
Issue™). An amount standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company will be capitalized and applied in making payment in full, at par, for the
new Shares to be issued under the Bonus Issue.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

FUTURE PROSPECTS
In the future, the Group will focus on domestic market and international market

simultaneously.

Under the influence of the competition in the industry and global economic crisis,
worldwide customers are paying more attention on costs, technologies and qualities.
At the same time, world well-known customers are having more stringent and
longer certifying process on suppliers. The Group has established a profound
business relationship with numerous world well-known customers and we believe
this can greatly strengthen our competitive position in the global market. The Group
will establish a more comprehensive product range and technical support, more
scale with customers

competitive costs, and further expand ~ our business

worldwide.

Besides, emerging market has a comparatively low level of network penetration and
coverage. The growth of capital expenditure on telecommunication infrastructure
will be recovered shortly as the result of the economic growth. Thus, this will
increase the demand of the antenna system products and base station RF subsystem
products of the Group. Through the increasing business network and market
influence of the Group’s well-known customers, the Group will actively pursue

business growth in overseas market.

[t is expected that it will take several years for building 3G network constructions in
China and there will be demand on network optimization afterwards. The Group will
take full effort in participation of 3G and LTE opportunities, consolidate and expand

our market share in China for a satisfactory growth of result.

The Company and the Board are committed to pursuing stable business
development and creating value for the shareholders and the society by
optimization of our scale and structure of customer base, technology advance and

competitive cost structure.

Hu Xiang

Chairman and chief executive officer

Shenzhen, PRC
[2 April 2010

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by approximately RMB309.0 million, or approximately 46.0%, to
approximately RMB980.2 million in 2009 (2008: RMB671.2 million). Sales of antenna
system, base station radio frequency (“RF") subsystem and coverage extension
solution products increased by approximately 62.4%, 15.2% and 398.6% to
approximately RMB423.1 million, RMB447.7 million and RMBI09.5 million,
respectively, revenue from products of dual and 3G usage increased by
approximately 84.2% to approximately RMB454.7 million when compared with last

year.

Antenna system

The 3G operator licenses were granted to the PRC domestic network operators in
January 2009. Afterwards, we began to see significant increase in the sales of our 3G
related products to these 3G network operators in China to facilitate their
deployment of 3G networks. While, the enhancement and broadening of their
current 2G networks were kept going. The increase in sales of our antenna system
products were due primarily to increases in sales of CDMA/GSM fixed-downtilt
antenna, CDMA/GSM remote electric-downtilt antenna, W-CDMA antenna and TD-
SCDMA antenna to approximately RMB120.7 million, RMB39.1 million, RMB87.4
million and RMB30.6 million, respectively, representing an increase of approximately
49.7%, 108.7%, 21.3% and 435.5%, respectively as compared with last year. The
Group also launched a new class of Multi-band/Multi-system antenna which

contributed a revenue of approximately RMB40.0 million.
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Regarding our antenna business with overseas network operators, sales to an India
network operator, Reliance Communications Limited (“Reliance”), reduced
significantly. Reliance had delayed or decreased its network capital expenditures
since 2008, which we believe was partially attributable to the global financial and
economic crisis. In 2009, the revenue derived from sales of W-CDMA antenna and
microwave antenna to it was significantly reduced. In the fourth quarter of 2009,

Reliance has resumed purchase from our Group.

Revenue from other antenna increased by approximately 213.19% which was
attributable to the launch of a series of new antenna products which were mainly

used in PRC and overseas for satellite communication and global positioning.

Base station RF subsystem

The significant growth of revenue from base station RF subsystem was attributable
to an increase of demand for our products from our global wireless network
solution provider customers, such as ZTE Corporation, Nokia Siemens Networks
and Alcatel-Lucent. Network solution providers incorporated our subsystem
products into their proprietary base stations, which they then sold to PRC network
operators for the development of their 2G & 3G networks as well as 2G network

operators in emerging countries.

Revenue from GSM RF device products, CDMA2000 RF device products and W-
CDMA RF device products increased significantly by approximately 42.3%, 53.3%
and 251.0% as compared with last year to approximately RMB282.4 million,
RMB77.8 million and RMB26.5 million, respectively. It was offset in part primarily by
a decrease in sales of CDMA/GSM RF device products.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Coverage extension solution

PRC network operators are paying more concern toward the aesthetic layout and
design of new antenna supporting structures in order to reduce the visual pollution
caused by ordinary antennas and towers in residential and commercial areas. Sales of

our aesthetic antennas increased by over two folds to approximately RMB30.1 million.

In response to local demand, we manufactured and sold more electric cables and
relevant accessories. Revenue therefrom increased by approximately eight folds to

approximately RMB77.2 million.

Customers

The issuance of the 3G mobile licenses in the PRC, the partial recovery of
worldwide economy from financial tsunami, the continue development of emerging
countries as well as our commitment to providing quality and sophisticated products
and building long term relationships with our customers contributed to the fruitful

growth of our revenue from a wide range of customers.

Sales to the PRC network operators, China Mobile Communication Corporation,
China Unicom Telecommunications Corporation and China Telecommunications
Corporation in 2009 increased by approximately 100.3% , 460.4% and 673.9% to
approximately RMB74.4 million, RMB192.3 million and RMB83.0 million, respectively
compared to 2008 while the sales to Reliance reduced by approximately 74.7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Sales to global network solution providers such as ZTE Corporation, Nokia Siemens
Networks and Alcatel-Lucent increased by approximately 40.3%, 12.6% and 406.0%
as compared with last year to approximately RMB333.0 million, RMBI8I.I million
and RMB37.7 million, respectively in 2009. Whereas, we reduced our sales to Nortel
Networks significantly by approximately 71.2% after it filed for protection from
creditors under Chapter | | of the United States Bankruptcy Code.

Gross Profit

As a result of the increase in our revenue, our gross profit increased by
approximately RMB97.2 million or 53.0% from approximately RMB183.3 million in
2008 to approximately RMB280.5 million in 2009. The increase in our gross profit
margin was due primarily to an increase in sales of 3G related products that
commanded higher gross profit margins, while the gross profit margin for our older
models related to 2G protocol decreased during the year. Our antenna products
generally maintained a stable gross profit margin during the year. Gross profit margin
of our base station RF subsystem products achieved an improved margin due to
change of customers’ products mix. Coverage extension solution products achieved
a satisfactory gross profit margin as a result of launch of new products. Products

diversification enhanced the overall gross profit margin of the Company.

Other Income

There were less government grant for research projects and tax refund in 2009 as
compared with 2008. As a result, other income decreased to approximately RMB4.5

million.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately RMBI16.6 million, or
47.2%, from approximately RMB35.2 million in 2008 to approximately RMB51.8
million in 2009. This increase was due primarily to increased sales activities as the
scale of our operation grew and for increased transportation costs for the

deployment of our products in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMBI8.5 million, or 39.0%,
from RMB47.4 million in 2008 to approximately RMB65.9 million in 2009. This
increase was due primarily to an increase in the number of employees as the scale
of our operation grew and charging of approximately RMBI13.5 million of one-time
listing related expenses. Increased expenses were partly offset by the reduction of

exchange loss and bank charges.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs increased steadily by approximately RMB2.0
million, or approximately 5.8%, from approximately RMB34.6 million in 2008 to
approximately RMB36.6 million in 2009. The increase was mainly attributable to

increase in payroll expenses to research and development engineers.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased slightly by approximately RMBO.6 million, or 14.6%, from
approximately RMB3.8 million in 2008 to approximately RMB4.4 million in 2009.This
increase was the mixed result of increased bank borrowing to fund the significant

growth of our business and lower average bank borrowing rate.
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Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation increased by approximately RMB56.9 million, or approximately
82.0%, from approximately RMB69.5 million in 2008 to approximately RMB126.4
million. Net profit margin before tax charged was widened from approximately
10.4% in 2008 to approximately 12.9% in 2009.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately RMBI 1.4 million, or
approximately 151.2%, from approximately RMB7.6 million in 2008 to approximately
RMB19.0 million in 2009. Our effective tax rates calculated from the tax charged to
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income over the profit before tax

were approximately 15.0% and 10.9% for 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Profit for the Year

Profit for Year 2009 increased by approximately RMB45.6 million, or 73.5%, from
approximately RMB61.9 million in 2008 to approximately RMB107.5 million. Our net
profit margin was approximately |1.0% in 2009, compared to 9.2% in 2008. The
increase in our net profit margin was due primarily to an increase in sales of 3G
related products that commanded higher net profit margins than the sales of 2G
related products, as well as the efficiency brought about by our increased economy

of scale.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will focus on domestic market and international market
simultaneously. The Group will concentrate its attention on RF technology of
wireless communication network, especially on base station RF technology and RF

technology of other wireless communications.

Products

During the vear, the Group has recorded a rapid growth in businesses of antenna
system, base station RF subsystem and coverage extension solution. According to a
research report of a third party, the global market capacity of the antenna systems
and RF devices amounts to US$8 billion to US$9 billion. The Group is thus confident
of maintaining its rapid growth in the future.
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For antenna system products, the Group will speed up its expansion of markets of
overseas network operators and network solution providers in addition to further
consolidating its leading shares in markets of PRC operators. The Group has been
one of the major antenna providers of several overseas network operators. At
present, the technology of antenna products is evolving rapidly in the world.
Integration and multi-system station will become a trend of development. The
Group has developed a series of new generation products, such as antenna with
multi-frequencies and multi-systems and high value added antenna. The Group has
also closely cooperated with network solution providers and network operators to
develop LTE series antenna. It is believed that this will bring more opportunities to
the growth of the Group. Meanwhile, some overseas network operators still persist
in overseas antenna brandnames. Therefore, the Group will strive to explore the
sales of antenna products to these potential customers by promoting its technical-

commercially competitive products by strengthening its cooperation with system

suppliers.
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In respect of base station RF subsystem products, the Group will continue to
enhance cooperation with global system designers, expanding product portfolios
and provide RF subsystem solutions to multi-national customers, including tower
amplifiers. Base station RF subsystem products are mainly customized products,
which complement each other with base station equipment. The Group believes that
with the long term and intensive cooperation with global system designers, the
Group is well positioned to keep abreast of the advanced technologies of base
station RF and the demands of the customers. The communication between and
faith of the customers has been enhanced while the competitive edges of the Group
has also been strengthened. Due to the recovery of the global economy, the
demands of global customers to the Group'’s base station RF subsystem products
had increased rapidly in the second half of 2009. The Group is confident with its
business growth in 2010.

In respect of coverage extension solution product, the optimisation and
improvement of 3G network construction will stimulate the demand of base station
antennas and base station RF subsystem and boost the demand for Aesthetic

Antennas, In-Building Antennas and relevant technology services.

Customers

The Group persists in focusing on global market and devotes to providing solutions
of RF technology to worldwide leading network solution providers and network

operators.

The Group is one of the few one-stop providers of wireless communication
antennas and base station RF subsystems in China. The Group believes that certain
or most of its products and solutions are eventually applied in overseas markets
through those worldwide customers in the past years. The Group, therefore, can
keep abreast of the global technology trend. The proven application of the Group’s
products and solutions in global wireless communication networks has gained the

faith of its customers and has maintained its leading position in its domestic industry.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009

BUSRTERER L AREHTHTER
SHPRER I REERNSERE  BEER
REMZS| - UMERELHTPIRHEEN
SIETFRRERAR  MIBTBMAR - Bubg
BYERERS REPEHRER - HEW
AFRERMEEFE - AEERRE - BRI
RETRUEENZEERANBEEGE
MR BT REE UGN AL B - BROAE
PRRKEER MASFEPER  HEM
BRAEENHFEY  -BEIHREEESH 2
BEPHASEEUSI BT RARERNTRE
2009F THFEMRIER - REEH20105F
HEBERTRRED °

BERMAREML - BA3GHERZROBHR

B M E  RYEMRREAUSTET
ABAOFIIN BRERHUXERE  EAX

SARBRRIMMRENFERKREER

EFAH

AEBERFEZRN2ETS  BHIRASRE
ERNBBIRHENEESEL B RM A
RilTRA R -

AEETRENDANERRA2EBRTR
e ﬁﬁ E LRR SRR RO

HERn - BARELEREF  HBEFE A
Elﬁfﬁﬁ% BOEERE DM EmMERE
RTRERREFBEIITHERN - EEG

AEERZER2HEMEORMES - LHERIK
MERBERRERTRIARNRENEL,E
B EBRTETREAE



=4
Management Discussion and ﬁ"’
EEENRE DN .

[l
!

Under the influence of the competition in the industry and global economic crisis,

worldwide customers are paying more attention on costs, technologies and qualities.
At the same time, international well-known customers are having more stringent
and longer certifying process on suppliers. Leveraging its advantages of cost and
technology, the Group has established a profound business relationship with
numerous international well-known customers and we believe this can greatly
strengthen our competitive position in the global market. The Group will establish a
more comprehensive product range and technical support, more competitive costs,

and further expand our business scale with customers worldwide.

Besides, emerging market has a comparatively low level of network penetration and
coverage. The growth of capital expenditure on telecommunication infrastructure,
including the licensing and construction of 3G networks, in emerging markets, will be
recovered shortly as the result of the economic growth. Thus, this will significantly
increase the demand of the antenna system products and base station RF subsystem
products of the Group. Through the increasing business network and market
influence of the Group's global well-known customers, the Group will actively
pursue business growth in overseas market. During the vear, the Group has
benefited from 3G network constructions in China and sales to the PRC network
operators recorded a significant increase. However, the sales to customers besides
the PRC network operators still accounted for approximately 64% of the total

revenue of the Group. The Group believes that the development of overseas

markets will bring the Group opportunities of rapid growth in the next few years.
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Based on the experience in domestic and overseas network constructions, it is
expected that it will take several years for building 3G network constructions in
China. According to the “Opinions regarding the Promotion of 3G Mobile
Communication Network Construction (BRHEEE =K BEBEHAEREZNE
5.) " jointly issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the
National Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the Ministry of Finance, the Department of Land and Natural Resources,
the Ministry of Environmental Protection, the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of PRC and the State Administration of Taxation on |7 March 2010,
China has planned to invest RMB400 billion in total in 3G construction and 400,000
3G base stations will be built by 2011, and it is expected that 3G users will exceed
50 million at that time. In addition, with the demand on network optimization,
multi-system stations and evolution of new generation networks, the Group has
already developed new generation technologies (such as antenna with multi-band
and multi-system) and respective optimizing solutions. The Group has also jointly
conducted research on technical specifications of LTE antenna with a PRC network
operator customer: It is believed that this will bring more opportunities to the

Group.

Conclusion

The Group is one of the few one-stop solution providers of radio frequency
technology for global network operators and network solution providers in China.
The Group has a wide range of well known customers and diversified income

sources, which contributes to the positive and stable growth of the Group.

The Company and the Board will continue to optimise the customer base and
structure, adapt strategies of product differentiation based on the technology and
costs, maximise the market opportunities in 3G, LTE and the new generation
wireless technology. The Group will also strive to enhance its integrated
competitiveness to ensure the stable growth of the operating results of the Group

and to maximise the returns to its shareholders and the society.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations and capital requirements from cash generated from
our operations, trade credit from our suppliers and short-term bank borrowings.
Our primary uses of cash have been for our increased working capital requirements,
capital expenditures on purchases of production equipment and acquisition of land

use rights for our real properties in Shenzhen, Jian and Xian, China.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009

ERBIRIMAERRESR - BIN3GRRERTE
SHEEHENE - BIE2010563/17HPETE
MEEE  BRERENELR - B - UK
#HBETERS - REREN  FEMNHHE
RE - BRBMEARHANET (FREES
“REBEREEINER)  PEIGRE
ZE2011F  3GERZRMLITE ARKA000(BTT -
3GEURBIOBE  3GHFER15EF - I
B BREL - 2RAUNRT R\ EE
HEETNE R AEEERABELELER
RBEF—RBMAREBECEATR - T
HERNN-—RELHEPHSMALTERGL
RITHE  BEAFNSEFTRESXBHKE -

B

AEEREALHAEALHELHERBRIR
HEERE - BR T R SRR (e
B BARZOMBEPME T RAR
B BAENRARERSREEMEBTHRE

AREEZERBERTEPRABAKENE
A RBMESL  RABLNERLCHEFR
B - &AE3G ~ LTER N —RESRMA T
BE RALKENGARTEN  BEREEE
BOREEE AEBEERRRRMMLE -

BXGR RBESRMEBER

AREIERER HEBRENESEERE
HMRTEFMELNREXNARAEERE
AFR - ARAINREEERENEARAE
ANZEESRFK  BELERBARELH
XEBRBADRERERY - SXMAZNE
SENLIHEREMR -



As at 31 December 2009, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB775.8 million (2008: RMB195.2 million) including inventories of RMB315.5
million (2008: RMB222.0 million), trade and note receivables of approximately
RMB531.5 million (2008: RMB347.8 million) and trade and note payable of
approximately RMB480.3 million (2008: RMB336.6 million).

The Group maintained an effective management of its working capital. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, average inventories turnover, average receivables
turnover and average payables turnover keep stable and are approximately 140 days
(2008: 131 days), 163 days (2008: 167 days) and 213 days (2008: 219 days),
respectively. We offer credit terms generally accepted in the antennas and base
station RF subsystems manufacturing industry to our trade customers. In general, the
average credit period for PRC network operators is longer than global network

operators and solution providers.

As at 3| December 2009, the Group recorded a pledged bank balances of
approximately RMB26.5 million (2008: RMB[4.7 million), cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB553.3 million (2008: RMB59.1 million) and short-term bank
borrowing of approximately RMBI27.1 million (2008: RMB 73.5 million). The current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) increased to approximately 2.1
times as at 3| December 2009 from approximately 1.4 times as at 31 December
2008. The gearing ratio (bank borrowings divided by total assets) was approximately
7.9% as compared with a gearing ratio of approximately 9.3% as at 31 December
2008. The interest rates on the Group’s bank borrowings are designated in both

fixed rate and floating basis at prevailing market rates.
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The Board is of the opinion that the Group has a solid and stable financial position
and adequate resources to support the necessary operating funding requirement

and foreseeable capital expenditure.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Renminbi (“RMB”) is the functional currency of the Group. Currencies other than
RMB expose the Group to foreign currency risk. We have foreign currency sales
and purchases and certain trade receivables and bank balances of ours are
denominated in United States dollar (*US$"), Euro (“EUR") and Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). We currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors and will consider hedging of foreign currency exposure when

the need arises.

After the listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange through IPO, our
bank balances are substantially denominated in HK$. The Board currently considers
that the appreciation of RMB should have an unfavourable impact on the Group's
financial results. The management is considering various mechanisms to limit foreign

exchange exposure.

APPLICATION OF NET GLOBAL OFFERING PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the IPO was approximately HK$625 million (including the
net proceeds from exercise of overallotment option) or equivalent to
approximately RMB 550 million. As at 31 December 2009, the IPO net proceeds has
not yet been applied to the primary purpose as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 4 December 2009 and was deposited into a licensed financial

institution in Hong Kong as short term deposit.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had approximately 2,600 staff. The total staff
costs amounted to approximately RMBI 16 million for the year ended 2009. The
remuneration of the Group’'s employees is determined on the basis of their
responsibilities and industry practices. Regular training is provided to improve the
skills and expertise of relevant staff. The Group also grants share options and

discretionary bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 3| December 2009, bank balances of approximately RMB26.5 million were
pledged to bank to secure the banking facilities provided to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had contracted for capital commitments
relating to acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately

RMB1,899,000.The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Details of the capital commitment of the Group are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Since the date of its listing on the Stock Exchange on |7 December 2009 to 3|
December 2009, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities.
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DIVIDEND AND BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

To share the fruitful results of the Group among all the shareholders, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03 per Share out of
distributable reserve of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December
2009, to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on | June 2010.The proposed final dividend will be paid on or around |0
June 2010 following approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM").

The Board also recommends a bonus issue of | new Share for every 10 issued
Shares held by shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on | June 2010. An amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company will be capitalized and applied in making payment
in full, at par, for the new Shares to be issued under the Bonus Issue. The Bonus Issue
is conditional upon the passing of the relevant resolutions at the AGM, and the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting approval to the listing of and

permission to deal in the new Shares to be issued under the Bonus Issue.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28 May 2010 to |
June 2010, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and Bonus Issue, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 pm on 27 May 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high standards of corporate governance

to maximize the operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder returns of
the Company. The Company adopted sound governance and disclosure practices
and continued to upgrade internal control system, strengthen risk control

management and reinforce the corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
and the rules on the Corporate Governance Report (the "CG Rules”) as set out
respectively in Appendices 14 and 23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) during Year 2009.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code since listing of the

Company's shares on |7 December 2009 to 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following

sets out the composition of the Board, by category of Directors:
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Executive Directors:
Hu Xiang (Chairman)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors:
Qu Degian

Xing Qibin

Yan Andrew Y.

Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Li Tianshu
Zhang Han

Bao Fan

The Board’'s composition demonstrates a balance of core competence with regard
to the business of the Group so as to provide effective leadership and the required
expertise to the Group. The executive Directors and senior management have
extensive management experience in the wireless communication antennas and base
station RF subsystems industry. The biographical details and experience of the

Directors and senior management are set out on pages 34 to 41 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships

among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and is entrusted
with the responsibility to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group's strategic development, business
plans, financial objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the executive Directors and

members of senior management of the Group.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis, as
warranted by business needs. Since the listing of the Company on |7 December
2009 and up to the date of this report, one Board meeting, one audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”) meeting and one remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) meeting were convened. Details of attendance of
Board meetings of each of the members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of

Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each Director at least 14 days prior
to the meeting, whereby the Directors can put forward his proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then circulated to the
Directors not less than 3 days before a Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make an informed decisions. For other Board meetings, reasonable

notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Since the listing of the Company and up to the date of this report, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be

independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Hu Xiang is both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
directions for the Group and for the daily management of the business of the
Group, implementation of the policies, business objectives and plans set by the

Board and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.
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Code Provision A.2.1

This code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Hu Xiang is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr.
Hu is one of the founders of the Group and has extensive experience in the
telecommunication industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides our
Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation
and execution of our Group's business strategies. We shall nevertheless review the

structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors of the Company is three years. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on 25 November 2009 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. The Remuneration Committee comprises all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Li Tianshu, Zhang Han and Bao Fan and two non-
executive Directors, namely Qu Degian and Yan Andrew Y. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Li Tianshu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's business successfully. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and for determining their remuneration

packages. The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
+  formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

*  recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration

of Directors and senior management;

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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. determination of the remuneration of executive Directors and senior

management, including benefits in kind and compensation payments;

*  review and approval of the compensation arrangements in connection with
any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or removal

for misconduct to executive Directors and senior management; and
*  determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance.
No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Since the listing of the Company on |7 December 2009 and up to the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review the Company’s
remuneration policies, the terms of the service contracts and the performance of all
executive Directors and senior management. Details of attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee are

set out in “Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named basis, are set out in note

|2 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
The Company does not have a nomination committee. Currently all new
appointments to the Board will be considered by the Board whose deliberations are

based on the following criteria:

*  possession of core competencies, including but not limited to financial literacy,
that are appropriate to the Company's business and complement the skills and

competencies of the existing Directors on the Board;

*  ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities

effectively; and

*  possession of a good track record of experience at a senior level in

corporations/organizations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 25 November 2009 with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors.

Zhang Han is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for communication between the
Directors, the external auditors and chief financial officer as regards their duties
relating to, among other things, financial and other reporting, internal controls and
external audits and to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing

independent view and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have
sufficient accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge

their duties. The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

*  to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of such

appointments;

*  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;

*  to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external auditor for

non-audit services;

*  to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports
and the auditor’s report to ensure that the information presents a true and

balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;
*  to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

*  to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal

control system; and

*  to review the external auditor’s management letter and any questions raised

by the auditor to the management and the management’s response.

One meeting was held by the Audit Committee during the period from the listing of
the Company on |7 December 2009 to the date of this report. The Audit
Committee reviewed, together with the management and the external auditors, the
consolidated financial statements for Year 2009, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and statutory compliance. In addition to reviewing
the Group's internal control system, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
independence of the external auditors and approved the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit Committee
meetings of each of the members of the Audit Committee are set out in

“Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS REZBHREERRFNR
The CG Code stipulates that the board should meet regularly for at least 4 timesa X EARTRHRTEESETHENERE &

i
year at approximately quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual Directors at FEDAR  KNBEFE—R - BRARALETZ
meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee H2009F 12R17EZAHRERE  SEFH
during the period from the listing of the Company on |7 December 2009 to the FEEE FTHEEGRERZECEREN
date of this report, respectively, is set forth in the table below: ARIER T !

Meetings attended/Meetings held

HESHER BTHNER
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Director EEKE Exg ¥MEES EREE®
Hu Xiang k) 1/ N/A N/A
TNERA TE A
Wang Guoying FEE 1/ N/A N/A
TEA TEHA
Du Degjan B 1/ /1 N/A
TEm
Xing Qibin FBECH 1/ N/A N/A
TERA TEmA
Yan Andrew Y. £k 1/ /1 N/A
TEHA
Yang Dong FR 11 N/A N/A
TNERm RNEH
Li Tianshu FRE 1/ /1 1/
Zhang Han R H 1/ /1 /1
Bao Fan B 1/ /1 /1
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles”), without
prejudice to and in addition to complying with the applicable requirements set forth
in the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations, the Company has since
|7 December 2009, the date on which its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
adopted a stringent system to avoid potential conflict of interests respecting
transactions (“Relevant Transactions”) in which any Directors are interested in, and
transactions with any of our connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules)
or any company in which the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company or its shareholders, individually or collectively, owns a direct
or indirect equity interest of 10% or above (including transactions with ZTE
Corporation, Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co,, Ltd., Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi
Tongxin Qicai Co., Ltd., and Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd.) (“Relevant

Companies”), as follows:

(I Any Relevant Transactions be approved by way of a resolution passed by a
majority of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, provided that any non-executive Director or independent non-
executive Director interested in the transactions in question will declare his or

her interest and will abstain from voting on such matters;

(2)  Any Director has a conflict of interest will not participate or be involved in

matters relating to the Relevant Transactions;

(3) An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) comprising the chief
financial officer and the deputy financial officer of the Company has been
established to monitor, review and manage all Relevant Transactions, and to
prepare semi-annual report in relation to the execution of the Relevant
Transactions (“‘Semi-annual Report”) for the supervisory committee’s (the

“Supervisory Committee”) review;
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(4) The Supervisory Committee comprising three independent non-executive
Directors (each of whom shall not have any interest in any transaction under
consideration by the Supervisory Committee and shall not be in a position of
conflict of interest when acting in such capacity) has been set up, among other
things, to supervise the Executive Committee, review and approve the terms
and conditions of continuing connected transactions and Relevant Transactions,
devise and review rules and guidelines for the Executive Committee to follow,
review Semi-annual Report from the Executive Committee, report its findings
to the Board and give recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
Relevant Transactions will be entered into in the interest of the Company and

its shareholders as a whole; and

(5) The Board will disclose the decisions, findings and recommendations on the
transactions reviewed by the Executive Committee and the Supervisory

Committee in the Company's interim and annual reports.

Since the listing date of the Company and up to the date of this report, one meeting
was held by the Supervisory Committee to review the report on Relevant
Transactions in respect of the sales and purchase entered into by the Group with
the Relevant Companies pepared by the Executive Committee. As reported by the
Supervisory Committee, (i) it had reviewed and approved the master agreements
entered into by the Group and the Relevant Companies and considered the terms
and conditions therein were fair and reasonable; (ii) it had reviewed the supplier
procurement bidding documents and internal procurement procedures of the
Group; (iii) it had devised and reviewed rules and guidelines for Executive
Committee and the Executive Committee had followed accordingly; and (iv) it had
reviewed the report submitted by the Executive Committee. The Supervisory
Committee considered Relevant Transactions conducted during the review period
were in line with the respective master agreements and the internal procedures of
the Group, were on fair and normal commercial terms and there was no other
matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the Board and shareholders of

the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”), the external
auditors of the Company, were responsible for providing services in connection with

the audit of the financial statements of the Group for Year 2009.

For Year 2009, the total remuneration in respect of review and audit services
provided by Deloitte for the Group amounted to approximately RMBI.6 million and
in respect of non-audit services provided by Deloitte amounted to approximately
RMB2.2 million.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the view) that,
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte be re-appointed

as the external auditors of the Company for 2010.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. Management
provides such explanation and information to enable the Board to make an

informed assessment of the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared

in accordance with applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner within the limits of

four months after the end of the financial period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard

shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient in providing
reasonable assurances that the Group's assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper
accounting records are maintained. The Group has applied an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and this
process includes updating the system of internal controls when there are changes to

business environment or regulatory guidelines.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, information of
the Stock Exchange, a corporate website, and general and investor meetings. The
Group is going to report to its shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular

dialogue with investors.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on

each substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hu Xiang, aged 56, is an executive Director, the chairman of the board of Directors
and the chief executive officer of our Company. He is also a director, the chief
executive officer and legal representative of MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a
director of MOBI Xian. Mr. Hu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002. Mr.
Hu was an engineer. Mr. Hu graduated from the Xian Infrastructure University (now
Xian University of Finance and Economics) majoring in radio communication in
August 1981, During the period from 1972 to September 1981, Mr. Hu worked in
the hydraulic transmission and control department of the Northwest Industrial
University. Mr. Hu then served as chief of the planning and supply department at
Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co,, Ltd. for the period from 1992 to 1999.
Mr. Hu joined our Group in August 1999. Mr. Hu was a director of Shenzhen Kang
Cheng Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007 and the general manager
of Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. from March 2000 to September
2007. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

Wang Guoying, aged 54, is an executive Director, and also a director of MOBI
Shenzhen and MOBI Jian and a director and chief executive officer of MOBI Xian. Mr.
Wang was appointed a Director on |9 December, 2002. He is also the Vice
President in Research and Development of our Company and MOBI Shenzhen. Mr.
Wang is qualified as a senior engineer. In December 1979, Mr. Wang graduated from
Northwest Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University)
majoring in antenna engineering. Mr. Wang has held such positions as assistant
engineer, engineer and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey
and Control Technology Institute during the period from 1987 to 1999. During this
period, Mr. Wang received a second class award in PRC National Scientific
Technology Advancement, a Model Individual Award for PRC National “Eighth Five-
Year Plan” Scientific Technology Advancement, a second class award and a third class
award respectively in Scientific Technology Advancement of the Ministry of Machine
Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Wang was a director of Shenzhen Kang Cheng
Jixie Shebei Co., Ltd. from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Wang joined our Group in
August 1999.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian, aged 47, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Qu was appointed a Director on 19 December 2002.
Mr. Qu graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of
Economics and Finance of Xian Jiaotong University) in June 1992 and he further
obtained the qualification as an accountant in the PRC in October 1994. From June
1993 to April 2003, Mr. Qu was the chief of ZTE Corporation’s accounting and
auditing centre and the deputy chief of its financial centre. In April 2003, Mr. Qu was
appointed as the deputy general manager of Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong
Shebei Co., Ltd. and since September 2007, has been the general manager of
Zhongxin Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd.. Mr. Qu joined our Group in
December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings Limited, a

substantial shareholder of the Company.

Xing Qibin, aged 44, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Xing was appointed a Director on 19 December
2002. Mr. Xing graduated from the Northwest Telecommunications Engineering
College (now Xidian University) with a bachelor of science degree in computer
software in 1986. In 1989, Mr. Xing graduated from Research Institute of Post &
Telecommunications as a postgraduate student. Since 2005, Mr. Xing has been the
chairman and general manager of Shenzhen Jufei Optoelectronics Co, Ltd. Mr Xing
joined our Group in December 2002. He is a shareholder of Fangyi Collaboration

Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Yan Andrew Y., aged 52, is a non-executive Director, and a director of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr.Yan was appointed a Director on 2 January
2003. He received a master’s degree in arts from Princeton University in the United
States in 1989. Mr. Yan was the founder of and has been the managing partner of
SAIF Advisors Limited, an investment advisor to SAIF Management Il Limited. Mr.Yan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Fosun International Limited
(stock code: 0656) and China Resources Land Limited (stock code: I109); non-
executive director of Digital China Holdings Limited (stock code: 0861) respectively,
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.Yan is also a
director of Acorn International Inc. (stock code: ATV), Giant Interactive Group Inc.,
(stock code: GA) and ATA Inc. (stock code: ATAI) which are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, and a director of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management
Ltd. (stock code: 002183), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange’s Small
and Medium Enterprise Board. During the period from June 2003 to February 2006,
he was an independent director of Eastern Communications Co., Ltd. (stock code:
600776.SS), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 2004 to
September 2008, he was an independent non-executive director of China Digital TV
Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code: STV) and during the period from September 2002 to
June 2009, he was an independent non-executive director of China Qilfield Services
Limited. (stock code: 2883), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr.Yan joined our Group in January 2003.

Yang Dong, aged 38, is a non-executive Director and a director of MOBI Shenzhen,
MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr.Yang was appointed a Director on | January 2006. Mr.
Yang is a charterholder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Mr. Yang
graduated from Tsinghua University in 1995 with a bachelor degree in computer
science. In 1997, Mr. Yang obtained a master degree in accounting from the
University of Southern California, United States. Mr.Yang has been working for SAIF
Advisors Limited, an investment advisor to SAIF Management II Limited and is
currently a partner at an affiliate of SAIF Advisors Ltd. Mr.Yang was a director of a
Nasdaq listed company, Perfect World Co., Ltd. (stock code: PWRD) during the
period from September 2006 to July 2008 and is currently an independent director
of it. Mr.Yang joined our Group in January, 2003.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Li was appointed
a Director on | July 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1976
majoring in computational Mathematics. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Li studied business
economics at Universitat Mannheim in Germany and pursued a doctoral degree at
Universitat Mannheim in 1988. From 1988 to 1995, Mr. Li worked as a research
assistant in the business economics department of Universitat Mannheim. During the
period from March 1995 to September 1995, Mr Li worked in Germany for Friatec
Aktiengesellschaft, an international manufacturing enterprise, and was designated to
become the future managing director for China. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Li first
worked for KSB Aktiengesellschaft, an international machinery manufacturing
enterprise, as the assistant to the chairman of the management board of KSB and
then became the chief representative of its Beijing Representative Office. During the
period from 1998 to 2002, Mr. Li took the position of regional director of Messer, an
international chemical manufacturing enterprise, responsible for its business
development in Northern China as well as the operation, sales and profits of its
joint ventures and wholly owned companies in the Northern China region. During
that period, Mr. Li also served as the general manager of Messer North China
Industrial Gas Co,, Ltd. and the chairman to the board of Tianjin Messer Gas System
Co,, Ltd. Since 2002, Mr. Li has been the general manager of Beijing Delintech
Technology Co., Ltd, a technical promotion service provider and sales service
provider. Mr. Li has valuable experience in international corporate management and

enterprise resources planning (ERP). Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2007.
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Zhang Han, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009 and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent director of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (stock code: PWRD), a Nasdaq
listed company, where Mr. Zhang has also served as a member of its audit
committee since July 2008. The responsibilities of such role include overseeing the
accounting and financial reporting processes as well as external and internal audit of
the Company. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor's degree in chemistry from the Peking
University in 1985, He later obtained an EMBA degree from the China Europe
International Business School in 2004. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Zhang worked at
Beijing Fiber Reinforced Plastic Research & Design Institute. Mr. Zhang was the
Manager in the securities department of Shenzhen Shekou China Merchants Co.,
Ltd. from 1989 to 1994. Mr. Zhang was the deputy manager at the finance
department of China National Technical Import & Export Corporation, and also the
general manager of Shanghai CNTIC Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. from 1994 to
1998. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Zhang served as assistant to the general manager,
investment director and fund manager at Penghua Fund Management Co, Ltd, a
fund management company in China. Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general
manager of Rongtong Fund Management Co., Ltd., a fund management company in
China, from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Zhang also served as the general manager of Great
Wall Fund Management Co., Ltd., a fund management company in China, from 2004
to 2005. Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Share Capital Partners Ltd., a Chinese
venture capital firm. Mr. Zhang has built up his experience in conducting due
diligence work in respect of the financial performance, management and corporate
government quality of various companies and conducting financial analysis of listed
companies throughout his various tenures in the investment industry. Mr. Zhang

joined our Group on 25 November 2009.

Bao Fan, aged 39, is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 25
November 2009. Mr. Bao obtained a master's degree in Economics from
Handelshgyskolen Bl in 1995. Mr. Bao was the chief strategy officer of Asialnfo
Holdings, Inc., a leading IT service and software company in China, from July 2000 to
March 2004. Mr. Bao is currently chief executive officer of China Renaissance
Partners, an investment bank headquartered in Beijing which he founded in 2004. Mr.

Bao joined our Group on 25 November 2009.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Lee Wai Kuen, aged 36, is our deputy financial officer, authorized representative and
company secretary. He is also the head of audit department and deputy financial
officer of financial centre of MOBI Shenzhen. He is responsible for our company
secretarial, financial, accounting management and internal audit affairs. Mr. Lee holds
a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lee has over 10 years of experience in finance, accounting and
auditing. Mr: Lee had worked in an international accounting firm and had held many
senior financial positions in listed companies. Mr. Lee joined our Group in August

2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shao Zhiguo, aged 47, is our vice president in Sales and Marketing, MOBI Shenzhen
and MOBI Jian respectively. Mr. Shao graduated from the Northwest
Telecommunications Engineering College (now Xidian University) with a bachelor
degree in wireless equipment structure design in 1984. In 1998, Mr. Shao obtained a
master degree in systematic engineering from Xi'an Electronic Technology University.
During the period of 1984 to 1999, Mr. Shao has held such positions as engineer
and senior engineer at the Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Control
Technology Institute. Mr. Shao has over |5 years experience of research and
development in the area of telecommunication measurement and control
technology and has received a second class award in Scientific Technology
Advancement of the Ministry of Machine Building and Electronics Industry. Mr. Shao
is a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Electronics. Mr. Shao was a director of
Kang Cheng from June 2002 to June 2007. Mr. Shao joined our Group in August
1999.

Huang Jianjun, aged 47, is our deputy general manager in Antenna business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Huang graduated
from Northwest Telecommunication Engineering College (now Xidian University) in
1983 with a bachelor's degree in magnetic field engineering and specializing in
antenna. Mr. Huang worked at Shijiazhuang Communications Survey and Controlling
Technology Research Institute from August 1983 to April 2001, where he was
awarded the qualification as an engineer in October 1992 and as a senior engineer

in fixed wireless systems in 1998. Mr. Huang joined the Group in April 2001.
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Huang Youyuan, aged 57, is our deputy general manager in RF business of the
research and development department of MOBI Shenzhen. Ms. Huang graduated
from Shaanxi Radio and Television University in industrial enterprises management in
1986. Ms. Huang qualified as an accountant in 1993 and as a senior accountant in
1998. Ms. Huang had worked at China Aerospace Times Electronics Corporation
during the period from December 1968 to April 2000 and her last position there

was senior accountant. Ms. Huang joined the Group in March 2001.

Liao Dong, aged 38, is our deputy general manager in Sales and Marketing of MOBI
Shenzhen. Mr. Liao graduated from Chongging University with a doctoral degree in
mechanical manufacturing and its automation in 1999. Mr. Liao had worked at ZTE
Kangxun Telecom Co., Ltd. during the period from July 1999 to February 200! and
at ZTE Corporation president’ office during the period from February 2001 to
March 2003. Mr. Liao joined the Group in March 2003.

Han Jianrong aged 49, is our deputy general manager in Production of MOBI
Shenzhen, MOBI Jian and MOBI Xian. Mr. Han graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University with a bachelor degree in foundry engineering in 1982. Mr.
Han has over 20 vyears of experience in production. Mr. Han was appointed as an
engineer at Xi'an Aerospace Engine Corporation and No.771 institute of China
Aerospace Corporation in 1989 and 1993 respectively, and was awarded his
professional qualification as senior engineer by China Aerospace Corporation in

[997. Mr. Han joined the Group in February 2000.

Kong Weitong, aged 46, is our deputy general manager of Internal Operations of
MOBI Shenzhen. Mr. Kong obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Shaanxi
Institute of Finance and Economics (now School of Economics and Finance of Xian
Jiaotong University) in August 1998. Mr. Kong worked at the China Aerospace
Corporation from 1982 to 2002 in the areas of accounting and audit, where he was
appointed as an accountant in 1992 and as a senior accountant in 1999. Mr. Kong
became a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public

Accountants in 2006. Mr. Kong joined the Group in May 2002.
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Chen Zhaojun, aged 33, is the chief financial officer of the Company and MOBI
Shenzhen, and is responsible for the financial management of MOBI Jian and MOBI
Xian. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Xiamen University
in July 1999, and later obtained a master's degree in economics from Xiamen
University in July 2002. Mr. Chen worked as Senior Project Manager in the
Investment Department of ZTE Corporation from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Chen has been
a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC since 2006. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
July 2004.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for Year 2009.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION
The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16

December 2002.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 17 December

2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries comprise the research, development, manufacture and sale of
antenna system, base station radio frequency subsystem and products of coverage
extension solution. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state of
affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 59

to 132,

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03 per share
and a bonus issue of | new ordinary share to 10 existing ordinary shares held by
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company

on | June 2010.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MBERER
The following is a summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for TRERAEERENASREENEERE
the last four financial years, as extracted from the Prospectus and the audited ERAE HERRERRAEGZHABRE -

financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006
2009 F 2008 & 2007 % 2006 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARB T ARETT ARETT ARETT

RESULTS -
Revenue KA 980,222 671,182 626,806 360,956
Profit before tax 7t B 1R 126,438 69,477 59,537 33,500
Tax 1A (18,968) (7,552) (2,764) (2,019)
Profit for the year FRF|H 107,470 61925 56,773 31,481
Profit attributable to KARER A

owners of the Company FEAE FI 107,470 61925 56,773 31,481

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREHE

Non-current assets FRBEE 146,659 135,054 94,789 74,577
Current assets MEEE 1,455,184 658,485 547,763 302,176
Current liabilities mBEE (679,392) (463,290) (359,467) (162,285)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (3,499) (2,673) (3236) (1297)
Net assets BERE 918,952 327,576 279,849 213,171
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME - BERRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the EX - FEEYE  BERRENEHFES
year are set out in note |5 to the financial statements. RETBEERM 15
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

In order to finance the Group's expansion, the Company issued 175,515,000
ordinary shares of US$0.000001 each, for consideration of HK$3.38 per share in the
IPO of the Company. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all

aspect.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the

year are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2009, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB894.2 million. This amount includes the Company’s share premium
account of RMB537.6 million at 31 December 2009, which may be distributed
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, revenue attributed to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 88.1% of the total revenue for the year and revenue attributed to the

largest customer accounted for 34.0%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year is less than 30%.

The Directors’ interests in a major customer and suppliers are set out in the

paragraph headed "Directors’ Interest in Contracts” on page 52 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Hu Xiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Guoying

Non-executive Directors

Qu Degian
Xing Qibin
Yan Andrew Y.
Yang Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

Li Tianshu
Zhang Han (appointed on 25 November 2009)
Bao Fan (appointed on 25 November 2009)

Under the provisions of the Articles, all of the Directors are subject to retirement

by rotation and re-election.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles, Mr. Hu Xiang, Mr. Wang Guoying,
executive Directors, and Mr. Qu Degian, a non-executive Director will retire and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board still
considers each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent from

the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of

the Group are set out on pages 34 to 41 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with our Company commencing from |7 December 2009 for a

term of three years, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with our Company for a term of three years commencing from 17
December 2009 (except for Li Tianshu whose engagement with us commenced on

| July 2007) and renewable by mutual agreement on annual basis.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ emoluments are reviewed by Remuneration Committee with reference to

Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION Bk
Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 26 to the AR RIEREST B BN B B RK 26 -

financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share option scheme — TRIFEALDEERETZIFRNE
during the year:

Adjusted on
Exercise price Outstanding as Forfeited capitalization Exercised  Outstanding
per share at beginning during issue during as at end
(RMB) of the year the year HERA the year  of the year
Name Date of grant BRITHEE  Exercisable period E4 FRA B1T FRA FXR
#H REAH (AR®) WSS HARTE BERYK kR BT HEARTHE
Directors:
Bz
Hu Xiang 15.1.2003 0.3529 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 820,000 — 3,280,000 — 4,100,000
A
Wang Guoying  15.1.2003 0.3529 15.12004 - 14.1.2013 350,000 — 1,400,000 — [,750,000
FEHE
Qu Degian 15.1.2003 0.3529 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 120,000 — 480,000 — 600,000
JEB%
Xing Qibin 15.1.2003 0.3529 [5.12004 - 14.12013 120,000 — 480,000 — 600,000
FBEA
Yan Andrew Y. 15.1.2003 0.3529 [5.12004 - 14.1.2013 135,000 — 540,000 (675,000) —
Yang Dong 15.1.2003 0.3529 [5.12004 - 14.12013 135,000 — 540,000 (675,000) —
¥R
Sub-total: 1,680,000 — 6,720,000 (1,350,000) 7,050,000
Et
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Adjusted on
Exercise price Outstanding as Forfeited capitalization Exercised  Outstanding
per share at beginning during issue during as at end
(RMB) of the year the year BEARAL the year  of the year
Name Date of grant BRITHEE  Exercisable period F9 FRA 1T FR FXR
# & REAH (AR®) JTEHE e RATE BERK AR BT EARTHE
Other participants:
HBRE
Participants 15.1.2003 0.3529 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 720,000 — 2,880,000 (1,200,000) 2,400,000
20E
Participants 31.8.2005 0.732 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 260,000 — 1,040,000 (900.000) 400,000
20E
Sub-total: 980,000 — 3,920,000 (2,100,000) 2,800,000
Mgt
Other employees:
HfES
Employees 15.1.2003 0.3529 15.1.2004 - 14.1.2013 350,000 — 1,400,000 — 1,750,000
B8
Employees 31.8.2005 0.732 31.8.2006 - 30.8.2015 2,255,500 (154,000) 8,406,000 — 10,507,500
B8
Sub-total: 2,605,500 (154,000) 9,806,000 — 12,257,500
I
Total: 5,265,500 (154,000) 20,446,000 (3,450,000) 22,107,500
et

The fair value of the share options with exercise price RMB0.3529 and RMB0.732 BERLBETMARE  TEEARARY

on the date of grant, as adjusted by the capitalization issue, were RMB0.19 and ~ 0.35297C X A R#0.7327T ) 88 IR i A 52 1) H

RMB0.272, respectively. BOATEANRARKILIITRARSE
0.2727TC °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 3| December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the

EZRERTBRAERR®D - HERSG
REHNEZRAR
R2009F 128318 EF  aRITHRAER

RENBBANARBHEREEE (EER
& MBS ([F5 R HR) EXVED)
MR - RERD REFTREREES LY
EEPIEXVEFETRFNBAMNE A RA R
BREEFREER
PIEEARABERNEDIAR) - IREE
R EGRPIFEB2EACFR AR A FEN

chief executive or their associates in the share capital, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV 5
of the SFO (including interests or short positons which they were taken or deemed BRXAEOERIAE (B
to have under such provisions of SFO), or which, as recorded in the register I

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as

otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model ZaMAegadoAR BB LT ARES
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), AT Jé%‘ SERETAI(RETA])EFNE
were as follows: ARRRBRAOESIARWT :

Ordinary shares of the Company: ERARERBR :

Percentage of the

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares Company’s issued capital

EEps EEME ROEE EEAFERTREANED L
Hu Xiang Personal 23,095,000 327%
FiE A Long Position

=9}
Wang Guoying Personal 24,734,000 3.51%
FEE A Long Position

=9}
Yan Andrew Y. Personal 675,000 0.09%
[ 1k A Long Position

=3}
Yang Dong Personal 675,000 0.09%
FR A Long Position

=9}
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Share options of the Company:

Details of the Directors’ interests in share options of the Company are set out in

the Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had registered any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company as at 3|
December 2009, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executives of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company: ARRERR
Percentage of the
Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares Company’s issued capital
ExEE BmtME BRAEE EEAFERTREANED L
Fangyi Collaboration Beneficial owner 209,643,000 29.72%
Holdings Limited BEREEA Long position
T EERARAE =3}
SB Asia Infrastructure Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 152,999,995 21.69%
EnfEAA Long position
=)
SB Asia Pacific Partners L.P. Interest of a 152,999,995 21.69%
controlled corporation Long position
REEGI AR #ER =9}
Shao Zhiguo Beneficial owner 41,496,500 5.88%
BBEE ExBAA Long position
=)
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EZRENTPHER
As at 31 December 2009, Directors’ interests in a major customer were as follows: HZ2009512A310 - EXEXPHNES
SHOTHRRMT
ZTE Corporation (“ZTE") REEAR, ARA R (T &R

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin, Directors of the Company, are members o KRRAEFH BEBLZNBEWAR

of the 39 shareholders (“Beneficial Owners”) of Fangyi Collaboration Holdings AR ETERRAEZRAEBRLA ([
Ltd. (“Fangyi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company. ) HBIERE (BmEEAl) 2KE -
*  The Beneficial Owners had an indirect equity interest of approximately 16.6% ° ,gﬁ_u%ﬁﬁ}\i_ PRI T A B4 5 R
in ZTE, the largest customer of the Group for the year ended 31 December BEARAR (DRIELBE]) OER - E
2009, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Zhongxin Weixiantong Shebei % T?Eﬁq:‘ FB 416.6% HY AR HE < R
Co, Ltd. (“Shenzhen Weixiantong”). Shenzhen Weixiantong owns 49% gEBBERER)THEBAREERD
shareholding interest in Shenzhen Zhongxingxin Tongxun Shebei Co., Ltd. B ([HEET]) 49% M PR 7 - BRI
("Zhongxingxin"), which in turn had approximately 33.87% shareholding B E B 433.87 % HIARHE ©

interest in ZTE.
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*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin together held approximately 5.60%
shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Therefore, they have indirect
shareholding interests in ZTE through their shareholding interests in Shenzhen

Weixiantong.

As at 31 December 2009, directors’ interests in major suppliers were as follows:

Shenzhen Kang Cheng Shebei Co, Ltd. (“Kang Cheng")

*  Wang Guoying, Director of the Company, has directly maintained
approximately 12.0% equity interest in Kang Cheng, a supplier accounted for

6.7% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2009.

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Kang Cheng through
their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong was a

[5% shareholder of Kang Cheng.

*  Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Kang Cheng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Shenglongfeng Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shenglongfeng”)

. Hu Xiang and Wang Guoying, Directors of the Company, have directly
maintained approximately 2.0% and 4.4% equity interest in Shenglongfeng, a
supplier accounted for 1.8% purchases of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2009.

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Shenglongfeng
through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong. Shenzhen Weixiantong

was a 20% shareholder of Shenglongfeng.

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Shenglongfeng through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
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Shenzhen Zhongxingxindi Tongxi Qicai Co., Ltd. ("Zhongxingxindi")

*  The Beneficial Owners have an indirect equity interest in Zhongxingxindi, a
supplier accounted for 1.3% purchases of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009, through their shareholdings in Shenzhen Weixiantong.
Shenzhen Weixiantong was a 34.3% shareholder of Zhongxingxindi. Shenzhen
Weixiantong owned 49% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxin, which in turn

had a 70% shareholding interest in Zhongxingxindi

. Hu Xiang, Qu Degian and Xing Qibin as members of the Beneficial Owners,
therefore, have indirect shareholding interests in Zhongxingxindi through their

shareholding interests in Shenzhen Weixiantong.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December
2009.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements which did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter

[4A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the percentage of shares
of the Company in public hands is in compliance with the prescribed level of the

minimum public float as set out in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has set up an audit committee with written terms of reference. The
audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors and reports

to the Board of Directors.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for Year 2009 have been reviewed by
the audit committee of the Company, who are of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and legal requirements, and that

adequate disclosures have been made.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 January 2010, the Company issued an additional 18,443,000 ordinary shares
at HK$3.38 per share pursuant to the partial exercise of over-allotment option by
the global coordinator on behalf of the international underwriters of the IPO on 8

January 2010.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte

as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Hu Xiang
Chairman

12 April 2010
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBI DEVELOPMENT CO,, LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MOBI Development
Co, Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group") set out on pages 59 to 132, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 3| December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 April 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEBERR

For the year ended 3| December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

f
} v]}'_lnamn;

2009 2008
20095 20084
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt & ARBTR ARETT
Revenue WA 7 980,222 671,182
Cost of sales $HE RN (699,718) (487,884)
Gross profit EH 280,504 183,298
Other income HilA 8 4,496 7,103
Research and development costs T B B 2N (36,547) (34,550)
Distribution and selling expenses DHENHERX (51,767) (35,170)
Administrative expenses TR X (65,891) (47,401)
Finance costs B RS A AN 9 (4,357) (3,803)
Profit before taxation 734 B A 8 126,438 69,477
Income tax expense FTiEBiR 10 (18,968) (7,552)
Profit and the total comprehensive RAREBA
income for the year attributable LN EERBR
to owners of the Company 2HBALE I 107,470 61,925
Earnings per share AT
— basic (RMB cents) —BEK (AREH) 14 26.63 1541
— diluted (RMB cents) 8% (A\R&H) 14 19.27 | 1.60
ELL#RARAT | 59
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE B S AR 3Rk
At 31 December 2009

2009 %12 A 318

2009 2008
20094 20084
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBDEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RS 15 118,175 107,484
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEFIE 16 21,154 21,570
Deferred tax assets RIEHIBEEE |7 7,330 6,000
146,659 135,054

Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 18 315,457 222,049
Trade and other receivables g5 REMERERER 19 559,466 362,159
Prepaid lease payments ENHERE 16 453 471
Pledged bank balances EHEFRITER 20 26,545 14,739
Bank balances and cash BITEHREIRS 20 553,263 59,067
1,455,184 658,485

Current liabilities TEBEE
Trade and other payables 85 REMENERER 21 537,812 380,31
Dividend payable AR B 758 429
Tax payable FERT 1A 12,922 8,033
Short-term bank borrowings RERITER 22 127,135 73,454
Deferred income WA 23 765 563
Provision B 24 — 500
679,392 463,290
Net current assets MENVEEFHE 775,792 195,195
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 922,451 330,249
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R B R /4 MOB| ji:

At 3| December 2009

1A 20094 12 A 31

2009 2008
20094 20084
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T ARETT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income EFEA 23 3,499 2,673
Net assets BEFE 918,952 327,576
Capital and reserves R K&
Issued capital BEITRA 25 5 |
Reserves i 918,947 327,575
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &1HEA A FE(hH &AL #E 918,952 327,576

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to |32 were approved and FORINEMNGEUBEBRRELEZTERN
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 April 2010 and are signed on 2010F4B 1288 EMBFRETZE  THIATE

its behalf by: EREREE -
Hu Xiang Wang Guoying
73 IEX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EX S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERAEB®RR

For the year anded 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

Statutory Share
Enterprise surplus option
Issued Share  expansion reserve Special reserve  Retained
capital  premium fund fund reserve  (Note 26) profits Total
B&fT Rt ©ERR AERH BH BREHR RE
& nfE £ DR féfs (st B7| @t
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
ARBT ARBTL ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETR
At | January 2008 R 200851418 | 52,042 3034 14,164 2999 4,661 202,948 279,849
Profit and the total comprehensive ~ FEF|ER
income for the year 2ERAEE — — — — — — 61,925 61,925
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREER
share-based payment PARRIA S {508 — = = = — 802 = 802
Transfers g2 — — — 2336 — = (2,336) =
Dividends paid ERRE = (12,695) = = = = (2305)  (15,000)
At 31 December 2008 7200812 A31 A | 39,347 3,034 16,500 2999 5463 260232 327576
Capitalisation issue of shares EXBIIRG 3 (3) — — — — — —
Issue on public floatation il o) | 52259 — — — — — 559
Transaction costs attributable to EIRHBNR N
issue of shares = (25741) = = = = = (25.741)
Exercise of stock options TERRE — 2294 — — — (729) — 1,565
Profit and the total comprehensive  FEF|E R
income for the year EEL PN L — — — — — — 107470 107470
Recognition of equity-settled BRUERERR
share-based payment ARRIA 9508 — = = = = 91 = 491
Dividends paid BRRE — (851) — — — — (14149 (15000)
At 31 December 2009 M 2009F 12 B 31 A 5 537,636 3,034 16,500 2,999 5225 353553 918952

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year anded 3| December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are
required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion fund and
a statutory surplus reserve fund which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such
reserves are made out of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are
decided by their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by

means of capitalisation issue.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision), the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. During 2009 and 2008, dividends,
to the extent in excess of the Company's retained profits, were funded out of its

share premium.

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid-in capital of MOBI
Antenna Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“MOBI Shenzhen"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in connection with
the acquisition of MOBI Shenzhen. MOBI Shenzhen was acquired pursuant to the
group restructuring, completed on 19 December 2002, at which time the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement for the acquisition of the entire equity

interest in MOBI Shenzhen.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEREREMK

For the year ended 3| December 2009

HZE 20094 12 A31 HILEE

2009 2008
20094 20084F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®ETTT
Operating activities &R
Profit before taxation 754 Bl A 126,438 69,477
Adjustments for: HATEBEELTE .
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses A A E RARD XN EHX 491 802
Depreciation e 15,114 13,471
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZREE — 452
Write-down of inventories FEME 1,017 361
Government grants related to assets HEERBNBNHBE (1,181) (563)
Interest income FEHA (440) (880)
Release of prepaid lease payments FRRR AN E A 434 372
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment HEE (&) 66 (6)
Finance cost IR IDEN 4,357 3,803
Operating cash flows before movements RTEBESEHAN
in working capital rREFRERE 146,296 87,289
Increase in inventories FEEM (94,425) (94.968)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H fth U AR E N (197,307) (81,864)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I EL h & A< BR ZRIE 159,727 99,286
Decrease in provision BEm (500) —
Cash from operations rREmBERE 13,791 9,743
Taxation paid BERHIE (15,409) (6,396)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities rEEY (R) EERSFE (1,618) 3,347

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ,
BARSHBHRE /3 MOB\ gy

For the year ended 31 December 2009

HZE20094 12 A31 HILFE

2009 2008
20095 20085
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Investing activities REES
Interest received 2 M A A 440 880
Government grant related to assets HEERBNBNHED S 1,217 =
Increase in pledged bank balances BHEIRRITAERIE N (11,806) (6733)
Prepaid lease payments BRAMEERE — (18,082)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELH (27,187) (32,442)
Proceeds on disposal of property, LEME  BER
plant and equipment REHATERIE 82 47
Net cash used in investing activities REGZHFMARESFHE (37,254) (56,330)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from issue of shares BRI RS TR 524,156 —
Transaction cost on issue of shares BIIRHRZ SR (25,741)
Dividends paid EfRRE (14,671) (14,571
Net funds arisen from THRERRE
discounting notes receivable R FE MR TR
and trade receivables PG E & %8 (23,454) (1,046)
Repayment of entrusted loan BEZITEX — (5,000)
New bank loans raised HIBRITER 207,135 100,000
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER (130,000) (95,000)
Interest paid BERAE (4,357) (3,803)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BMEES (FA) EEREFE 533,068 (19,420)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents & RIRESFEWELM (FL) 494,196 (72,403)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January R1ATENRERREEEY 59,067 131,470
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A3NBNRERREEFED
represented by bank balances and cash (BR1THAEBRRIRE) 553,263 59,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*‘Stock
Exchange”) on |7 December 2009. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited PO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is 7
Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province, PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ (the “Group”) principal business is

production and sale of antennas and radio frequency subsystems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has adopted all the new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “New HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that

are effective for the Group's financial year beginning on | January 2009.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

For year ended 31 December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)
At the date of this report, the HKICPA has issued the following new standards,

amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective for the year ended

31 December 2009. The Group has not early adopted these new standards,

amendments and interpretations.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendment)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008'

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'

Classification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items!'

Additional Exemption for First-time Adopters’

Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS
Disclosures for First-time Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)
HK (IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

K (IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instrument®
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2009
Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July
2009 and | January 2010, as appropriate
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 |

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013

The application of HKFRS 3(Revised) may affect the Group's accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after | January
2010. HKAS 27(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a

Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For year ended 31 December 2009
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and will be effective from |
January 2013,with earlier application permitted. The Standard requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flow and (ii)
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at fair value. The
application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and measurement of the

Group’s financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new
or revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis and in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For year ended 31 December 2009
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective

date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on

consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal

course of business, net of discounts and related sales taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress) are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-

line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production or for its own use purposes. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which

the item is derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For year ended 31 December 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expenses over the year The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses

(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash

flows of the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial

re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade receivables and
notes receivable that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group'’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30-120 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Cont'd)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the

assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, dividend payable and
short-term bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or;, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and recognise a collateralised

borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where

the effect is material).

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit

or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary

differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if all the

following have been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

-~ the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to

complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assets; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the
sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to

profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Research and development expenditure (Cont'd)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

losses (if any).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets. Other government grants are recognised as revenue
over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenses on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Income taxes

As at 3| December 2009, a deferred tax asset of approximately RMB7,330,000
(2008: RMB6,000,000) in relation to deductible temporary differences of MOBI
Shenzhen has been recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position (note 17) while no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of RMB8,379,000 (2008: RMB4,131,000) of EELLRIF (A %) AR AT
MOBI Technologies (Xi An) Co,, Ltd. (“MOBI Xian") due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable profits
generated are more or less than expected, a recognition or reversal of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period

in which such a recognition or reversal takes place.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to owners through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include short-term
bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, share

premium and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balances its overall capital

structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and new debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and
financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed below:

Categories of financial instruments

PEEBEERERER
REEEREERSRMABRKANTR
ST HCR (BHEERER - 5t EEERK
XHMHEREE) OFERHEIRE - &%
FERTAMNFERENT :

ERMIENES
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Financial assets TRE
Loans and receivables (including Rk LIQEE

bank balances and cash) (BREETEREES) 1,132,328 425,386
Financial liabilities LRAGE
Amortised cost B 652,909 450,348
Financial risk management objectives and polices HERREEREREE

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
pledged bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
dividend payable and short-term bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash and pledged bank balances, which represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the end of

6.

BREREERBEREE @)
RERR
FEENTECREERE I REME
WER - RITEHREREARCERR
TS RERTEEREBEERZ

the reporting period. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its BARBAENRSEERREE - X
trade receivables and notes receivable. The credit risk on trade receivables and SEEMNEERBRFERREEKESE
notes receivable are concentrated on top five customers of the Group. In HEENERE BERESERRERE
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated BREERAREFRAEENTAE

a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable and notes receivable at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are international banks and state-owned banks with good

reputation.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number of customers in the
PRC. If the Group is unable to broaden the customer base and expand
relationships with major wireless network solution providers and major
network operators, the business may continue to be impacted by
unanticipated demand fluctuations which can have a negative impact on the
revenues and business, and an adverse effect on the results of operations and

financial condition.
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RE TSR R MEE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. MIBEEMEEEZRBE (84)
Credit risk (Contd) FERKE ()
The Group has a significant concentration of customers. For the year ended 31 AEENEFREST - HZE2009512
December 2009, aggregate sales to the top five customers of the Group AJNBLEFE  MAREPELMEE
accounted for approximately 88.1% (2008: 85.8%) of the total sales. Amount BHRERTEHE B L88.1% (2008
due from them as at 3| December 2009 amounted to approximately % 185.8%) ° 2009 12HA31H - &
RMB273,656,000 (2008: RMBI35,177,000), representing 82.6% (2008: 65.3%) W EAXEFHAREHNAARE
of trade receivables (before making allowance for doubtful debt) as at 3| 273,656,0007T ( 20085 AR E
December 2009. These major customers are PRC network operators and 135,177,0007T) * 1520095128318 H)
domestic and overseas wireless network solution providers with good BREZER (RABRREER) W
reputation. 82.6% (2008%F : 65.3%) - ZELER

PRABRHEBZNTEBRELAR

BRIMER B BRRTT RLER -
Currency risk EXERE
The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases and certain trade AEEEINEHERKE  BASEN
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and borrowings of the Group are ATEWESEN f7&%  ENE
denominated in United States dollar (“USD"), Euro (“"EUR”) and Hong Kong SERREFUET(ET]) - B
dollar (“"HKD™), currencies other than the functional currency of the respective (M) BB ([Bx)) 5stE (% %éﬁﬁa
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group THABSEERNNERR) @ FA%
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the BAZKENERR - AEE B A EE
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging ANEEREEK - A - ERESER
significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises. SNERE - BEREREHERRINE
R\ o
The carrying amount of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets REFHRUIIEFENEBEERE
and monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period are as follows: BEENREEWT
2009 2008
2009 20084
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8 BE B8R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR®TH

usD xTT 39,973 13,386 40,948 6,343
EUR BT 10,749 — 13,118 —
HKD BT 498,139 3,467 5 290

Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Currency risk (Contd)

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2008: 5%) change in the
RMB against USD, EUR and HKD. The 5% (2008: 5%) is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analyses of the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period have been determined
based on the adjustment of translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2008: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive or negative number indicates an increase or a
decrease in the post-tax profit where RMB strengthens against USD, EUR and
HKD. For a 5% (2008: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD, EUR and HKD,

there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.

HERBEEEERBE &)
E%ER (8)
TEREEAKRBARELET - BT K
7 TC5% (20085 : 5%) B BH B E
1& ° 5% (2008%F : 5%) YN AkRE
EEBABERERAREMREAMNL
X NEBEHINEEXSEMIEE
BMTE c AEERBRBREREN
IEEEXREBROGREDIN - KEKE
EREBERERARERL% (20085 :
5%) NEEREEHELMEL ARE
FoFHHBHRTARKLET B
7T R A T E R R T 518 MR 5 050
Do RARBREL BRI RATRE
5% (20085 : 5%) M5 ' MEMNEHE
HRESERARNOTE -

At 31 December

RWI2A318
2009 2008
20094 20084F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTFT
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit (i) BEMEEM O A ) )
If RMB strengthens against USD MAR®EETHE (1,131) (1443)
If RMB strengthens against EUR WAR®ZBTHE (457) (558)
If RMB strengthens against HKD WMAREEBTIE (24,733) 12

(i) This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign currency receivables
and bank balances at year end as a result of the foreign currency sales in

the Group and the proceeds from issue of shares of the Company.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year. The sensitivity analysis to change in RMB against
HKD is mainly attributable to the bank balances as a result of the proceeds

from issue of shares of the Company in December 2009.

(i) ZEBREBREAKEREINMEHE
REBETRRARNFAERRM R F
g

ERERS ARFENRRIL TRBK
FRMEE  SEERESNL T RER
REMINERK - ARBEEHELY
ENFRENNEEER2009F12AK
RAIBTRDPAGRIBZRITMEL

ELLBRARXA | 87
2009 %
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk which arises from pledged
bank balances (note 20) and fixed rate bank borrowings (note 22). Interest
bearing pledged bank balance and bank balances are mainly short-term nature.
Therefore, any variations in interest rate will not have a significant impact on

the results of the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances (note 20) and variable-rate bank borrowings (note 22). In 2009, the
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of prevailing market rates of the bank balances denominated in HKD. In 2008,
the Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of The People's Bank of China Benchmark Interest Rates (“PBOC

Rate”) arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

If interest rate on bank balances had been 30 basis points (2008: 30 basis)
higher and interest rate on short-term floating rate bank borrowings had been

50 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) higher and all other variables were held

6.

BREREERBEREE @)

F=E

AEEEECERRITER (ME20) &
ERRITER (M2 MEENATE

MERER - FHEEERRITERRRT

HBHRIEREHLE - At FAME

EYRTeUAREANZBENBEAY

B o
=

AREETVAR H RRITEE (5E20) &
BRITER M2 F Eﬁﬂ@fﬁfﬁbm%m
R o 2000F AKERERAZERERE
RRAB TR ERRITERER TSN R
K& © 20085 - AEEHREREN KR
BREBETRAKEUAARBFENER
FEE NP BARRITEEN X (THEA
RFITHR]) KE

K’il B Al 3 & F| K
%)‘Eﬁ/#i?&ﬂ?ﬂ B2 o

%T HER
IEE%KT

N SR 1T 45 &R B9 ) & _E 3R 301 (2008¢ :
30fH) 2 R G H 7 S RITRE A F=
FR501E (20084 : 50fE) £ 3 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

constant, the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year is as follows: BEAERTE HEABRTBEMNERE
gemT
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETTT
If the interest rate goes up fe A % _EF
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit BarEEm Cgd) 1,320 (19)

If interest rate on bank balances denominated in HKD and other foreign
currencies had been | basis point and 30 basis points lower, respectively, (2008:
30 basis points) and interest rate on short-term floating rate bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) lower and all other variables
were held constant, the potential effect on the post-tax profit for the year is as

follows:

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. BIEEMEEBEERKRE (&)

Interest rate risk MEER
2009 2008
20094 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF R ARETT
If the interest rate goes down fisi ¥ R T }#
Increase in post-tax profit &M Em 82 19
Liquidity risk REBELER

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Banking facilities available to the Group are approximately RMB447.5million
(2008: RMB371.9 million).

The Group relies on bank balances and cash, and bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. Undrawn borrowing facilities of the Group are approximately
RMBI21,948,000(2008: RMBI151,250,000).

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for its financial

liabilities. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

NABEERREET  AKEEER
RE—TEKFNRERREEEY <
ERERRRARNASBEZERT -
TRABHRCRERDNTE - B
EERRTERNERLERETER
L4

AEBUHARTEENEARE
447,500,000 ( 2008F @ A R ¥
371,900,0007¢) °

AEBABRROTERRREUARRITE
HEARBHESRE - AEERIZIA
f& 84 A AR¥121,948,0007T (2008
F : AR¥151,250,0007T) °

TRAASESRAGEHRTARZIMA
MR - ZRBINAEREEZRER

)

ERARAR | 89
2009 £ 47
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Contd) 6. HIEEMEEBEERBX (£
Liquidity risk (Contd) RBESER (£)
Liquidity risk table RBESERE
Carrying
amount at
Weighted Total 31 December
average undiscounted 2009
effective Payable 01030 3060 61090 Itol80 180t0365 cashflows  H09E
interest rate  on demand days days days days dys  BRER AR
MEFHERHE EZREE 0230F 31Z60% 61290k 91Z180% 180%365%k  BeH  KEE
%  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
% ARETR ARETn ARBTR ARETn ARETr ARMTR ARETR ARETR
2009 W0 F
Trade and other payables BAREMERER — 1911 Medde 08I SSSET 713 805 5016 55006
Dividend pagzble Efife — 758 — — - = — 758 758
Short-term bank borrowings BERAER 448 — 0475 14398 40338 45419 18le4 18794 127,138
7669 BN BN 9595 TS 2689 65458 652909
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2008
interest rate Payable 01030 3lto60 611090 900180 18010365 cashflows  HA2008F
METH  on demand days days days days Gy BAEE 128318
BEFIZ EEREE  (020R  E60R  61E0R O1Z10K 180E366k  Bek  KEE
% RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBON  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBON
% ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
208 2008
Trade and other payables BAREHERER — BN eI Wl %6 3188 7093 376465 376465
Dividend payable EfifE = 49 = = = = = 49 49
Short-term bank borrowings EHRTER 557 — BB WB BM 18 — AT T3
930 WISl 68199 304 08 sl 038
Fair value ATE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis. The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

90 | MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments to report segment
information for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. Operating
segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the chief executive officer of the Company, for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. Information reported to
the CODM s focused on three principal categories of products - antenna

system, base station RF system and coverage extension solution.

No measure of segment assets and liabilities are reported to the CODM for
performance assessment and resource allocation. Accordingly, no segment

assets and liabilities are presented.

The Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Antenna system - manufacture and sale of antenna system and related

products

Base station RF subsystem - manufacture and sale of base station RF subsystem

and related products

Coverage extension solution - manufacture and sale of a wide array of

coverage products

EXEROBER
AEERRAEBMBEREEREST &
ED BB Z2009F %2008F 12 431
AEFENIHEN - @BHHIEAE
ESagERRA((RREEREAL
AR RTHAR) ROEERKRATEE
EhEHERER A ESEAKT I M
NBBRERD - MERREERKEAZR
MENETZBRAGRR  ZUGTHEF
ARG RBERRAR=REMREH -

VERFERARERAEMARSE
BRREAZHBABEERAE BRI
B2IDHEERALE

AEBRER BT ERELERESHAA]
ERDIMT ¢

AREG-HERHERRERLIAA
EDD

HUSTHRTRR - RERHERUSE
?/Vb&*ﬁ E‘a%ﬂﬂ

BELHIR - HERHEREREE

DD
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. EXERIBEN B
Information of segment revenues and segment results ERIBUARSBEENER
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Segment revenues 2 EUA
Antenna system PN Y 423,051 260,543
Base station RF subsystem UG RS 447,656 388,675
Coverage extension solution BELEBAER 109,515 21,964
980,222 671,182
Segment results D EEE
Antenna system PN Y 108,931 63,533
Base station RF subsystem UG T RS 107,499 84,327
Coverage extension solution BELERAR 27,527 888
243,957 148,748
Reconciliation of segment results 2 EBRABEB AN E K -
to profit before taxation:
Other income H Al A 4,496 7,103
Other expenses Hth 7 2 (117,658) (82,571)
Finance costs B 75 A AN (4,357) (3,803)
Profit before taxation 754 A1 1) 126,438 69,477

92 | MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EXBERIBDER (B
Information of segment revenues and segment results (Cont'd) BRI BRARSHBEENER (&
2009 2008
2009%F 2008%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTR

Other segement information: Hitb 3 HEHR -
Depreciation e
Antenna system PN E Y 4,499 3,427
Base station RF subsystem B G BT R4t 4,689 5113
Coverage extension solution BERMAR 1,085 289
Segment total 7 B4t 10,273 8,829
Unallocated amount ADBEEHE 4,841 4,642
Group total SEEG 15,114 13,471
Research and development costs: PREERA
Antenna system PN 14,939 13,026
Base station RF subsystem B G BT R4 16,558 15,340
Coverage extension solution BELRAR 5,050 6,184
Group total SEEG 36,547 34,550
Revenues reported above represent revenues generated from external EXEROBRABRBEINDE P B
customers. There are no inter-segment sales during the two years ended 31 A BE2009512A31B IEMFE I &
December 2009. AEEHEE -
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the AI2H/A DS BREMTINERE
Group's accounting policies described in note 3.The Group does not allocate BedBkER - REERRESNEE
other income, distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses, BRIEERIBRAGERERR T2
finance costs and income tax expense to individual reportable segments when BHEMBA SHRHEERX ~ THH
making decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and Y UBRARFAEHAL SR T A
assessing their performance. 2HHH -

ERARAR | 93
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. EXERIBEN B
Entity-wide disclosures: ER2EREER:
Information about products BFHERNESR
Revenues from each group of similar products within the reportable segments Al 2 %7 8 A B R ILE m A Bl 8 A 0
are as follows: T
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBTE

Antenna system N2

CDMA/GSM fixed-downtilt antennas CDMA/GSM [El5E ™ME X & 120,718 80,663

CDMA/GSM remote CDMA/GSM =2 E 3 T A K4
electric-downtilt antennas 39,092 18,728
PHS antennas PHS X4 294 1957
Yagi antennas NARKRER 399 1,095
W-CDMA antennas W-CDMA X £ 87,412 72,059
TD-SCDMA antennas TD-SCDMA K48 30,582 5711
Multi-band/Multi-system antenna e VES T PN 40,030 -
Microwave antennas LOEN 48,005 62,276
Other antennas =P N 56,519 18,054
423,051 260,543

Base station RF subsystem HILETHEF R4

CDMA 2000 RF devices CDMA2000 51 5825 {F 77,798 50,757
CDMA RF devices CDMA §f#B25F 21,637 33,323
GSM RF devices GSM §f #8314 282,441 198,490
CDMA/GSM RF devices CDMA/GSM 573838 {4 31,505 95,901
TD-SCDMA RF devices TD-SCDMA §f 3251+ 2,478 2016
W-CDMA RF devices W-CDMA 5 #8288 1 26,490 7,548
Other devices Hth 38 5,307 640
447,656 388,675

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 7. EXBERIBDER (B
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd) ERZEREER: (B
Information about products (Contd) BERERMNESR (B)
2009 2008
20094 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Coverage extension solution BELMWAFE
In-door antennas EOPN 2,161 4,085
Aesthetic antennas (N 30,109 9,372
Other products H fth R 4% 33,920 4,100
Electric cables EF 43,325 4,407
109,515 21,964
980,222 671,182

No operating results nor discrete financial information in respect of each

group of similar products is presented to CODM.

EBTEEFNEN
RER AR A B RN E B
BB10%HESHMATT -

Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10%

of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2009 2008
20094 2008%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR®EFT

Customer Al HE A 333,007 237,314
Customer B2 =P B? 192,335 N/A & 4
Customer C? =B Cs 181,123 160,833
Customer D? ®E D? N/A & A 4 77,540

KRG REGHE T ZRBA

revenue from antenna system and base station RF subsystem L

2 revenue from antenna system 2 REBEZRFHIPA

3 revenue from base station RF subsystem s HUSHET RSMBA

g The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 0% of the total sales of ¢ BARASAEERHEERET EER
the Group. #10% °
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. EXERIBEN B
Entity-wide disclosures: (Cont'd) ERZEAREER: (&
Geographical information i EE R
The reportable segments of the Group are mainly operated in the PRC and AEENA 2R HFEENFEREN
overseas (mainly Finland and India). An analysis of the Group's geographical (FERFTRRHNE)REER - TRE
information on revenues attributed to the region on the basis of the JIREEREFAEME S K0S B
customer's location is set out in the following table: NGO RN BB ik

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

PRC H 863,908 466,320
Overseas AN
India 0E 28,362 79,342
Finland PN | 77,114 102,687
Others Hi 10,838 22,833
Subtotal NE 116,314 204,862
980,222 671,182
All non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets) of the Group are AEERAEERDEE RERBEER
located in the PRC. IN) BRI E o

96 | MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlg A
2009 2008
2009 20085
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®TT

Government grants Bifshe
- related to expense items —ERXEAEH 1,742 3,080
- related to assets (note 23) —BEEERA (M 23) 1,181 563
Compensation income EKRA 1,049 l,158
Tax refund for re-investment in B E RN RY| R LB E = 1,058

MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI g (%) BRAF

Telecommunication Technologies (TEELLE %) KR

(Ji An) Co,, Ltd. ("MOBI Jian")
Interest income M EMA 440 880
Sales of materials and scraps SHEME REH = 31
Gain on disposals of HEREEBESREEN R E

held-for-trading financial assets — 120
Gain on disposals of property, HEME  BERRENRE

plant and equipment — 6
Others HAth 84 107

4,496 7,103

ELL#RARAT | 97
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BBAZE
2009 2008
2009%F 20085
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIETAE
- wholly repayable within five years —2HERRFANER 4,357 3,803
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIEHEAX
2009 2008
2009%F 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT
PRC income tax P AS 3 20,298 12,025
Deferred tax (note 17) BEREBIE (M 17)
- current year —KRFE (1,330) (4491)
- attributable to a change on tax rate —HEEEEN — 18
18,968 7,552

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is exempted from

income tax. It is not subject to tax in other jurisdictions.

MOBI Shenzhen was established in Shenzhen, PRC, with applicable tax rate of

| 5%.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
Annual Report 2009
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 10. FiBHHAX (&

In 2008, MOBI Shenzhen is a High and New Technology Enterprise defined by
Shenzhen Finance Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Shenzhen
Municipality and Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of
Taxation and therefore is entitled to 5% preferential tax rate from PRC
enterprise income tax for three years starting from 2008, according to the
New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. Accordingly, the tax rate for MOBI
Shenzhen is 15% for the years ended 3| December 2008 and 2009. The
deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the respective years when the asset is realised or the

liability is settled.

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the applicable tax rate
of MOBI Jian is 25% from 2008. In accordance with the tax legislations
applicable to MOBI Jian, it is entitled to exemption from PRC enterprise
income tax for the two years commencing from its first profit making year of
operations in 2006, after offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried forward
from previous years, and thereafter, entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
enterprise income tax of 25% for the next three years. Accordingly, the tax

rate for MOBI Jian is 12.5% for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

The applicable tax rate of MOBI Xian is 25% for the years ended 3|
December 2008 and 2009.

20085 « B RIARIEGERRE - &
JImARBERRAINTERRBE R
AEMEMBRECEAR  BRtAH
2008F E=FZEHRECEMBHE
2NN BEAMPECEMSE
B Bt BEHRYIREE2008F K
200912 A31HILFEMHERI5% °
BEREARDCRE  URMESE
REREELLEABERERARSER
MO o

BEIPECEMGHZE  BLEZH
EATE B2008F £ 525% © REBEA
RELEROHHR  BHEREETH
CEMEGHAE  BERNTNREERSF
KA AR BHIBEEE%K2006F & @
REBRNFEETABME  HiE=F
BT MB0%E25% B = B i p B b X AT
B8 - At - HZ2008F %2009F12 7
SIBELFEELELXMNBREANA
12.5% °

B £20085F k2009F 12 A31HILFEE
LT ERRER25% °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation as follows:

10. FIEHAX (8)

FERBAXHERANEEERMT

Year ended 31 December

BE1N2ANBLEE
2009 2008
20095 20085
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Profit before taxation IR DE 126,438 69,477
Tax at PRC Enterprise BB ZEREHR
Income Tax at 15% HE15% st EHHIE (a) 18,966 10,421
Tax effect of expenses not TEFBERERAZNRBZE 647 435
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not BARTBMAN R B E
taxable for tax purpose (183) (84)
Tax benefit syl (b) (2,341) (2,440)
Effect of 50% tax relief granted it ERER
to MOBI Jian 50% TSR 2/ & & (2,716) (3,558)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERELALH
recognised of MOBI Xian BREEBENRETE 637 620
Effect of different tax rates SEERNTRTXNTE
of group entities 1,811 2,666
Income tax exempted FRETHEA R 2,531 183
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate ELERERNERT RSN
for deferred tax over current tax AHRE R EE
on deductible temporary difference HENHARIEN T E (384) (709)
Decrease in opening deferred tax asset ERRERL SR
resulting from a decrease TR 5 & R D
in applicable tax rate — 18
Tax charge for the year FEBRBHX 18,968 7,552

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 10. FiBHHAX (&

Notes: B 5E -

(a) Applicable income tax rate of 15% represents the relevant income tax rate of (a) 15%5’]}5%% BHEEELEAEEX
MOBI Shenzhen, the major subsidiary of the Company which generates majority AERABRIENARAEEFAAIE
of the Group's assessable profit. J:tmﬂ‘\ﬁ"ﬁﬁ RS IR R o

(b) Tax benefit represents an incentive scheme that, in addition to the research and (b) WBARIEREE | R EKRER
development cost incurred which is deductible for tax purpose, a further 50% of SRWBEH  E—FMBHBERED
the research and development cost incurred is deductible. 50% °

I1. PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE 11. FEFBRZEAKAZER KA T

YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ERABGENRZERALE
Profit and the total comprehensive income for the year has been arrived at HBRATEER  EFEEMNREZEEKA
after charging the following items: RS I
2009 2008
20095 20086
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETT

Directors’ remuneration (note 12) E=Me (s 12) ,644 1,495
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RARBHET IR 5219 2,523
Other staff costs (a) Hfth 8 TR A (a) 108,719 87,337
Fquity-settled share-based payment expenses ~ MAREZ 4 E RIAR D ZTHF X 491 802
116,073 92,157

Auditors’ remuneration A Gl 1,630 372
Operating lease rentals in respect of FENTEENE2HERS

- prepaid lease payments —ERNMEERKIE 434 372

- rented premises —BEHME 5,776 4,320
Depreciation neE 15,114 13,471
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERERINFEERAR 699,718 487,884
Allowance for doubtful debts AEEEH GTATHHAX)

(included in administrative expenses) — 452
Write-down of inventories FEME GTATHRAX)

(included in administrative expenses) 1,017 361
Loss on disposals of property, HENE  BER

plant and equipment RO ER 66 —
Net exchange loss B EERE 359 6,596
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

1. PROFIT AND THE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE 11. FEFBRZERALER KL T

YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Contd) BEABRGRFRZERALE &
Note: P st
(a) Included in other staff costs is RMB2,248,000 (2008: RMB2,205,000), which (a) B ZE2009%12A318 - EMEIKA
represents the rental expense for the staff quarter for the year ended 3| BIEH AR 12,248,0007T (20084 :
December 2009. ARH2,205,0007) HEETEENHES
I o
2. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EENEEME
Directors’ emoluments EEMS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the executive ANEFBEMRENKAGNHTESE
directors and non-executive directors of the Company by the Group are as EHTEENMES A/ ¢
follows:
2009
20095
Other
emoluments
(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus
benefits and allowances)
scheme Htth <

contributions (FEBHE

Fees RIEA 38 Total
e TEME  REREE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%¥Tx

Executive directors BITEE

Hu Xiang B — — 794 794

Wang Guoying FER — 20 721 741

Non-executive directors FHTES

Qu Degjan EEg 3 — — 3

Xing Qibin TREH 3 — — 3

Yan Andrew Y. Bk 3 — — 3

Yang Dong ¥R 3 — 23 26

Independent directors BUEE

Li Tianshu FRA 6 — 58 64

Zhang Han 5% 5 — — 5

Bao Fan BN 5 — — 5
28 20 1,596 1,644
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M IRAR M
For year ended 3| December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

f
} v]}'_lnamn;

12. EBREEMS (&)
EZME (8

2008
20085

Other

emoluments

(mainly basic

Retirement  salaries, bonus

benefits  and allowances)

scheme Hinie
contributions (F28%E
Fees RIKRRF K% Total
ik AR ®e R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:T
Executive directors HBTEE
Hu Xiang A — — 758 758
Wang Guoying FEE — 10 643 653
Non-executive directors FHTES
Qu Degian [BEE — — — =
Xing Qibin TREH — — — —
Yan Andrew Y, = — — — —
Yang Dong FR = = 24 24
Independent directors BUEE
Li Tianshu FRAF — — 60 60
— 10 485 1,495

During the two years ended 3| December 2009, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors or the five highest paid individuals has waived any

emoluments during the two years ended 31 December 2009.

BZE2009F12A31B LMEE - A58
TEAGRIEESIAEESTMAL
MBASELIREMNBR  SEAREE
BEBL A T EEMBME - 8 Z 2009512
AJNBLEMEE  BEANESHRE
EaFMATRERREMME -

EtbgEARAT | 103
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 12. EEREEME B
The five highest paid individuals included two (2008: two) directors for the B ZE2009F 12 310 ) 20085 12 A 31
year ended 3| December 2009 and 3| December 2008, details of whose ALEFE  hAAReFMALBEMRA
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2008: (20085F : MA)EE  RENMEFE
three) highest paid individuals are as follows: MW EX - EBR=% (20085 | =8) &

BREMALOMEHINMT :

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Employees E&

- basic salaries and allowances —E#H &R 2,177 1,474

- retirement benefits scheme contributions — R R A5t 4R 60 27

- equity-settled share-based payment expenses — ARz E RIARMD XML 47 44
2,284 1,545

Their emoluments were individually within RMB1,000,000. & NEE B9 R A K %1,000,0007T 2

A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RERME

For year ended 31 December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

f
} v]}'_lnamn;

13. DIVIDENDS 13. BRE
2009 2008
2009%F 20086
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABBFR  ARETI
Dividends recognised as distribution FRERED RS
during the year:
2007 first dividend of 2007 FF— RS
RMBO.1424 per ordinary share BREBRARK 0.1424 T — 10,641
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZRRE
RMBO.1424 per ordinary share BhEBRARE 0.1424 T 10,641 —
2007 first dividend of 2007 FFE— KRB B
RMBO. 1424 per Series A preferred share ARINEBEBRARKE 01424 T — 4359
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZRREBR
RMBO.1424 per Series A preferred share ARINBRBRARK 0.1424 T 4,359 —
15,000 15,000
A final dividend of HK$0.03 per share in respect of the year ended 3l EEEZRMNEZ2009F12A31HIEF
December 2009 amounting to approximately RMB 19,139,000 (2008: nil) has EHRAREFR.03EBT A LHOA
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the F£#19,139,0007T (20084 : #&) - A%F
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. BHERAEERRBF KNS ER A E

=
B
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4. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

The earning figures for calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the ordinary owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

14. BREF
AR ERAALEBRFEARGER
ERARBEERNOBMEFT HRE T
HEHE

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTR
Earnings 27
Profit for the year and attributable FARREEE AEIGETF
to owners of the Company 107,470 61,925
Less: W
2007 first dividend of 2007 FE—RBEER
RMBO. 1424 per Series A preferred share AZFIBEBRARE0.1424 T — (4,359)
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZRREER
RMBO. 1424 per Series A preferred share ARFBERARK0.1424 T (4,359) —
Earnings for purpose of basic earnings per share FA{EFT & &M EREF 6 & F 103,111 57,566
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TaRETEENTE
2007 first dividend of 2007 FE—RBEER
RMBO. 1424 per Series A preferred share AZFBEBRARE0.1424 T — 4,359
2007 second dividend of 2007 FEZRBEER
RMBO.1424 per Series A preferred share ARFIBERARKE 0.1424 T 4,359 —
Earnings for purpose of RETEGREERMA RN
diluted earnings per share 107,470 61,925

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 14. BREF (&)
2009 2008
20096 20084
Shares’000 Shares'000
TR T
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{EFT E S REARZF
for the purposes of basic earnings per share B & AR N T I B 387,176 373,543
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TERBESHETE
- Conversion of Series A preferred shares — B ARSELR 146,712 153,000
- 2003 share options — 2003 FHE R 1 12,888 7411
- 2005 share options — 2005 F R iE 10,996 —

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{EFT & SR EE & F

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share K E AR IN#E T35 &K 557,772 533,954
The computation of diluted earnings per share, which is based on the fair value BRESRANGERZE  DREALR
of the ordinary shares estimated by the Company's director except for Series AIEEMGANERRATE (ARTIE
A preferred shares, does not assume the conversion of the Company's TR - WRBRAD R MARTTER
outstanding 2005 share options for the year ended 3| December 2008 since 2005 FE R R BIZ2008F 12 A318 Ik
the effect of their exercise on earnings per share is anti-dilutive. FEEHR RABTEHERAMAR

BEER -
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of earnings AEERENOERRMETHEIE
per share has been prepared based on the assumption that the Capitalisation RIB#E20095 11 A25B BiBH R R R ZE
lssue pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009 had FETHEREIT2008F 1 A1BEE
been effective on | January 2008 (details of which are set out in note(a) of BEBREMETE (GBS 258 /&
note 25). (a)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

HZE 20094 12 A31 HILEE

I5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE

Furniture
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings 73 RE vehicles  machinery i progress Total
BT RERRKE NEEB RE HERKE HRIE @zt
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMBO0O  RMBI00O
ARBTL ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
CosT A&
At | January 2008 R2008%5 1718 47412 6,054 1,958 2939 57,010 46 116,034
Additions AE 10,758 1 485 — 17 17,654 1,794 31,967
Disposals e = (70) = (68) (34) — (172)
At 31 December 2008 R2008E12A318 58170 7,669 1,958 3,147 74630 2055 147829
Additions AE 417 1216 73l 674 16,876 6,039 25953
Disposals & — (677) (197) (349) (194) = (1417)
At 31 December 2009 R2009E 128318 58587 8,208 2492 347 91312 8,294 172,365
DEPRECIATION e
At | January 2008 200851718 1422 2315 1,669 1,520 20079 — 27,005
Provided for the year ERNERE 1,575 1,208 |44 439 10,105 — 13471
Eliminated on disposals HEHH — (34) — (65) (32) - (131
At 31 December 2008 R 2008F 12 4318 2997 3,489 1813 1,894 30,152 — 40,345
Provided for the year ERNEE 1,745 1315 Ef; 406 11615 — 15,114
Eliminated on disposals MERH - (626) (197 (331 (115) = (1269)
At 31 December 2009 R 2009F 124318 4742 4178 1,649 1,969 41652 — 54,190
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2009 K209 128318 53845 4030 843 1,503 49,660 8,294 118,175
At 31 December 2008 R 2008512731 R 55,173 4180 145 1253 44478 2,255 107,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For year ended 31 December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and

equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives

and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

Over the shorter of the term of lease or

30 years

19%
50%
19%
9.5%

- 19%

The Group's buildings which are situated in the PRC are erected on medium-

term land use rights.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

f
} v]}'_lnamn;

15. M%  BERRE (@)

AR EERDE - BEMRRERE (B
BTN M A ERFRRNAERE
BT FRMIHERA » LB REM

AR EE -

HEFHK305F
(ABEE RE)

19%
50%
19%

9.5%Z 19%

AEBURTENEFRIHLMER

EER -

16. ENHHERE

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBTFT

Land use rights in the PRC AR B A + 3
Medium term lease ERETHEE 21,607 22,041

Analysed for reporting purposes as: WA
Current portion BIERED 453 471
Non-current portion FERNERES 7 21,154 21,570
21,607 22,041
EELLBRBRAT

2009 3}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MERRNEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

|7. DEFERRED TAX 17. BEHRE
Excess of
accounting
depreciation
over tax Unrealised
depreciation Allowance for profit of inter-
Allowance EHHE doubtful company sales
for inventories  EHBHH debts Provision A 7] /& # & ) Total
FERE HENZE REER B REREN #ct
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTE ARETR ARBTR
At | January 2008 M2008E 1A 18 — 1,297 140 90 — 1527
Credit to profit or loss EBRRRAR - 1771 69 - 2,651 4491
Effect of change in tax rate REEHNTE = = ?3) (15) = (18)
At 31 December 2008 m20084612 A31 R — 3,068 206 75 2,651 6,000
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FEEZEARE,/ (k) 108 96l — (75) 336 1330
At 31 December 2009 M2009F 12 A318 108 4,029 206 — 2987 7,330
The deferred tax asset as shown on the consolidated statement of financial REMBRABRKATEEHIBEER

position is RMB7,330,000 (2008: RMB6,000,000).
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

I7. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 17. BEHIE (&)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets: ABRECHEBEEE -
2009 2008
20096 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTR

Tax losses with expiry in: RUATFEEIRNBHERE
- 2013 — 20134 4,131 4,131
-2014 — 2014 % 4,248 —
8,379 4,131
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of B A R SR R B DA G 5T - B R
future profit streams. BIEHEEE -
Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared BEFPECEMETE - H2008F1 A
in respect of profits eared by PRC subsidiaries from | January 2008 onwards. TR iR EF 2R BRI F 2 R
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated statement of REBHMENR - GE2ERERE
comprehensive income in respect of temporary differences attributable to WK EFREEG R R AR
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB210,964,000 =% AR210,964,0007T (20084 : A
(2008: RMB81,435,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the R #:81,435,0007T) FHRELHE - A
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary AEEAEHBOERZENRRE - B
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. ERZEARYENA R ERER -
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Raw materials R 63,820 50,192
Work-in-progress R m 19,624 20,303
Finished goods BURK m 232,013 151,554

315,457 222,049

ErzERARARA | 111
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. E5 REMERIRN

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFR ARBTE

Trade receivables FEAE 5 &% 331,384 206,895
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (1,371) (1371
330,013 205,524
Notes receivable S 201,523 142,319
Rental and utility deposits Mekifkke 1,924 778
Advance to suppliers [r] {1t JRE 7 25 35K 6,946 4,994
Other receivables, other deposits HihEWARR - ke
and prepayments (Note) RIEMFIE (M) 19,060 8,544
559,466 362,159

Note: In December 2009, a deposit of approximately RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to
HKD25,000,000) was paid to underwriter for settlement of professional fees on
behalf of the Company. The unutilised balance of approximately RMB 14,967,000
as at 31 December 2009 is included in other receivables and was refunded to

the Company in January 2010.

M -

AR AR 2009F12 A BB #HHE X R
£ 4 AR 22,000,0007C (HHERB
#25,000,0007T) * EEHEA KA
NAEFNEXER - ZE2009F128
31 RBAEHRDARE
14,967,000t A YR - B
R2010F1AREFARR e

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Movement of allowance for doubtful detbs REREBEE

Balance at beginning of year FAEEER 1,371 919
Impairment losses recognised ERREKERIFREER

on receivables = 452
Balance at end of the year FEREEER 1,371 1,371

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately RMBI,371,000 (2008:
RMBI,371,000), which have defaulted on payment. The Company considers
that the recoverability of these receivables is low and therefore allowance for
bad and doubtful debts has been provided. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For year ended 31 December 2009
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 19. EZREMEWRERR (&)

The Group offers credit terms generally accepted in the antenna system, base station
RF subsystem and coverage extension solution manufacturing industry to its trade
customers, which is around 30 to 120 days for a significant number of the Company’s
products, although a longer credit term may be extended to certain customers,
depending on price, the size of the contract, credibility and reputation of the
customers. In order to manage the credit risks associated with trade receivables
effectively, credit limits of customers are evaluated periodically. Before accepting any
new customer, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness of the new
customer and assesses the potential customer’s credit quality. Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record attributable to their

corresponding research on the creditworthiness.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade receivables net

of impairment losses at the end of reporting period:

TEBEAEFRFRERRER - BUb
FRTEARRBECRIREETEE
BEXNEEH  ARAKEEMNE
EHIR30E120RE A BETERPHA
FEREMERY  RTYER  GREK
N BEFNEREREEMBHRAR -
REWERRENESRTEBANEE
Rl ARAEHHEFPNEEREE
IaHE - AEERREMHELH > &
AERBHNBPHERLERFEER
PHEEER REABEERS A
AARBHNER BN R E SR A
ESm -

ATRREFHRREZAHFNER
B ER FRBERBR) 0REDT :

2009 2008
20095 20084

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 113,242 85,521
31 to 60 days 31E60H 65,595 39,049
61 to 90 days 61 % 90 H 20,453 14,036
91 to 120 days 91 Z 120 H 11,613 36,017
121 to 180 days 1212180 B 21,18l 5,161
Over 180 days 838 180 B 97,929 25,740
330,013 205,524

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes receivables at

the end of reporting period:

ATRAREFHRREZEHFMEK
FEHER AT -

2009 2008
20095 20084

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTT

0 to 30 days 0E30H 14,382 39,603
31 to 60 days 31E60H 52,704 28,876
61 to 90 days 61Z 90 H 32,324 26,834
Over 90 days 83/ 90 B 102,113 47,006
201,523 142,319

ErmERARXA | 113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Aged analysis on credit period of trade receivables which are past due but not

19.

B REtERERR (&)
ERHEYERENEREBRIAE

impaired: EHRAREENRE SN -
2009 2008
20095 20084F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Age iR iR AR%ET R ARETT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 50 88
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 502 20
61 to 90 days 61 Z90 H 581 353
91 to 120 days 91E120H 29 8
121 to 180 days 121 £180 H 33 ,198
Over 180 days #8180 H 3,910 1,767
Total st 5,105 3434

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age

of these receivables is 99 days (2008:113 days).

The Group's trade receivables of RMB45,350,000 (2008: RMB39,056,000),
were denominated in USD and EUR, foreign currencies of the respective group

entities.

20. PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The Group's pledged bank balances represent bank deposits with original
maturity ranging form 3 months to one year and carry fixed rate interest
ranging from 0.05% to 2.25% per annum during the year (2008: 1.71% to
3.33% per annum). They are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group and notes payables of the Group.

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash and bank deposits which
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% to |.17% per

annum during the vear (2008: 0.36% to 0.81% per annum).
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CEARTESR BITESHRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For year ended 3| December 2009

HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

20. PLEDGED BANK BALANCES/ BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Contd)
Certain of the Group'’s pledged bank balance and bank balances and cash with
an aggregate amount of RMB91,263,000 (2008: RMB58,794,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The government of the PRC has implemented foreign
exchange control and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject

to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of RMB488,545,000 (2008:
RMB15,012,000), were denominated in USD, EUR and HKD, foreign currencies

of respective group entities.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

f 4
} lDﬂDBlutt ﬁi;

20. BEBRBTES RTEHRRES
(%)
ARBETEERRTARERTER
ER & &% AR91,263000T
(2008%F : AR™58,794,0007T) A AR
BEE MARBYEBEBRMELENE
HAAEE FERNETIEES
KESELPEZNETE R EBAH
B 5 PR 4

AEEBETRALEBRREARE
488,545,000t ( 2008F @ A R %
15,012,0007T) AR EEBE B WINEE
T BT RATTEE -

21, ESGREMERER

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Trade payables FEfTE Z R 310,025 198,476
Notes payable ANES 170,278 138,123
Payroll payable ERTE 20,602 15,585

Payable for acquisition of property, WEME - BE R
plant and equipment REERN R 996 2,230
Other taxes payable Hfth T H IR 7,039 3,799
Accrued expenses ZitAx 18,018 17,250
Refundable government grants (note) ARERFMEE () = 992
Receipt in advance B IE 5,757 2,854
Others Hit 5,097 1,002
537,812 380,31 |

Note:Refundable government grants are recorded as other payables as the unutilised
amount would be refunded to the government. When the Group has utilised the
amount for depreciable assets, the related amount is then transferred to and
presented as deferred income and released to profit or loss in accordance with

the Group's accounting policy.

i : WRERMEBEARIIEEMLE
MEF RERAPANSERR
BEBE - BAKERZELER
REREEE  HHSBH/EEA
SENEHBRREALZFIREL
WA LEABRERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of trade payables at the

21.

BaREMENRR (@)
REFPRREZAHANENES K

end of reporting period: HEREROMWOT
2009 2008
2009F 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTTT
0 to 30 days 0E30H 70,555 63,063
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 55,324 36,677
61 to 90 days 61290 H 45,895 40,099
91 to 180 days 91 £180 H 102,147 55,409
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 36,104 3228
310,025 198,476

Typical credit term of trade payable is 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of notes payables at

ENESEFNEEN—RB0R -

RERPRREZAHANENRELN

the end of reporting period: REOMMT
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TFR ARBTE
0 to 30 days 0&30H [,106 35,087
31 to 60 days 31260 H 61,985 48,644
61 to 90 days 61290 H — 54,392
Over 90 days #2838 90 H 107,187 —
170,278 138,123
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HBZE2009F12 A31 HILFE

22. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 22. BHIRITHER

2009 2008

20096 20084

RMB’000 RMB'000

Categories 5l AR®T T ARETF T
Secured BEM

- Fixed rate —EL — 23,454

- Floating rate — %28 13,135 —
Unsecured i

- Fixed rate — = 74,000 10,000

- Floating rate — %8 40,000 40,000

127,135 73,454

At 31st December 2009, the short-term secured floating rate bank borrowings are
denominated in USD and carry at PBOC Rate of 1.39% per annum. At 31st
December 2008, the short-term secured fixed rate bank borrowings carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 1.95% to 2.65% per annum. These short-term secured
bank borrowing are secured by bank deposit of approximately RMBI3,1 11,000
(2008: by note receivables of approximately RMB23,454,000). At 31st December
2008, the related note receivables were discounted with recourse and therefore,
they have not been derecognised from the consolidated financial statements. At

3st December 2009, there was no discounted note receivable.

At 31st December 2009, the short-term unsecured floating rate bank borrowings
carry at PBOC Rate of 4.860% per annum (2008: ranging from 4.62% to 7.47%
per annum). The short-term unsecured fixed rate bank borrowings carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 4.617% to 5.045% per annum (2008: 4.62% to 6.12%

per annum).

Other than the secured floating rate bank borrowings at 3 |st December 2009, the
remaining bank loans are denominated in functional currencies of the respective

group entities.

2009 12A318 - HBHIRT BRI
EHAETE  RYBEARRITHE
FF1.39EFT L8 °2008F12A310 ' &
HEERESRITERREF1.95ERE
265EMEERELNE - ZERBAEE
RRETERBBRTIEROARSE
13,111,0007C fE & #7 (20085 : LA FE M
Z &4 A R 23,454,000 £ # # o
2008 12A318 - HEARELRE HER
REKEBE MR HERE At
ERREMBRERRETER - R2009F
12A318  UWERKERETR -

2009F 12A31H * REAEE T BRT
fEREFEARRITAESF4860E
(2008% : BEA62BETATE)FT A o
EHEERERITEREZEF4617E
£5.045[F (20085 : §F4.62EZ£6.12
B) WEEF RS -

2000128318 + HHEMT BRI
MY BTE KRB EE A A
B A -
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23. DEFERRED INCOME 23. EEKA
Deferred income represents non-recurring government grants received, for BT WA JE B UER 3E A8 R 1 U 4 B
acquisition and improvement of property, plant and equipment. e ARKBREENE BERR
f& o
The deferred income s released to the profit or loss over the expected useful BEREWAZEBEEENESAIEREH
life of the relevant assets. Movements of deferred income during the years are BABGR FRETERANZE
as follows: T -
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Government grant related to assets HEEFRNBRA#YE

At begining of the year REH] 3,236 3,799
Additions NE 2,209 —
Released to profit or loss REERREA (1,181) (563)
At end of the year RER 4,264 3236
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2HAN

Current portion ENERER 5 765 563
Non-current portion FERNERE 3,499 2,673

4,264 3,236
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24. PROVISION 24, BfE

In December 2004, MOBI Shenzhen was alleged to have infringed a utility
model patent of Guangdong Tongyu Communications Equipment Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Zhong Shan Tongyu Communications Equipment Co., Ltd.)
("Tongyu"), which utility model patent is a type of waterproof feeder structure
for omni-directional antennas. Subsequently, MOBI Shenzhen made an
application to the Patent Review Committee to invalidate that utility model
patent. Thereafter, the Patent Review Committee invalidated Tongyu's utility
model patent in part, which ruling was then upheld by The Beijing First
Intermediate People’s Court and The Beijing Superior People's Court,
respectively, within their jurisdiction. On 3 September 2007, The Intermediate
People’s Court of Shenzhen issued a first instance verdict in the corresponding
civil proceedings dismissing the allegation of patent infringement. On 30
September 2007, an appeal against such first instance verdict was filed with The
Guangdong Superior People’s Court. On 23 June 2008, The Guangdong
Superior People's Court affirmed the first instance decision and dismissed the
allegation of patent infringement. MOBI Shenzhen was found not liable for any
damages. Based on a legal opinion from a PRC lawyer that, the maximum
amount of damage will not exceed that as claimed by Tongyu should the
amount of profits of MOBI Shenzhen from the utility model is quantifiable or
the maximum amount of damage will not exceed RMB500,000. The directors
are in the view that the above said profits is not quantifiable and, accordingly,
the Group may be exposed to a maximum potential liability of RMB500,000 in
relation to the legal proceedings and a provision of RMB500,000 was made as
at 31 December 2008.

On |5 September 2009, Tongyu filed an application for retrial with The
Supreme People’s Court of the PRC. On 2 November 2009, MOBI Shenzhen
received a notice date |6 October 2009 from The Supreme People’s Court of
the PRC stating that the said retrial application was accepted. In accordance
with the retrial application, Tongyu seeked to revoke the final civil judgment
granted by the Guangdong Superior People's Court. On 29 December 2009,
the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC declared the final nullity of Tongyu's
said allegation and MOBI Shenzhen is not liable for any compensation
consideration. Accordingly, the provision of RMB500,000 previously made was
reversed during 2009.

2004 128 - BRI BEERL
Guangdong Tongyu Communications
Equipment Co., Ltd. (RIFE [ L TEF
BAREBAERAAD ([BFHN—EE
AHNERN  ZERFREFNEZAX
RE—RUIKERERE - BHORIIBER
MENBEZECRFSMAERNL
EREN - 2% ENBEZECHTE
BTFNERAUNENL BN - LR

F-HFBRARZRERIERTERARZE
BRAMD AR ADEER A AR ©
R200749A3A >§Eﬁl|m¢ﬁ&/\EPEF
EEBREFDFEL —FHR
EFREHEE - 1 2007F9A30H - E?\
ERZ—BHRIFEBEREGRAR
BT © M2008F6A 230 - ERE ™R
ARERBHEABEREHRANEE —F
FOR - WO BN REEE - BRI

HRAEEMEE - RETREMEZ
BER WELRIKREERHLNR
Me@mEl MEaBERETgR
BRFHEBREIRRBALETGR
#BARM500,0007C - EERA - AR E
MEMNELZEN  REASENE Lt
ERFAMAARNZRSEEEEOR
AR ®500,0007C + 37 7 20084 12 A 31
H i % A R #500,0007T °

R2009F9A 150 » BFRFBE &S A
RERBFES - N2009F 11 A28 -
ADREEF B &R ARERK2009F
T0R16EELMAS  NEeFRESRR

FOEXE REZEEHF BFE
KHEBERERRARERELNRE
REHR - R2009F 127298 * FE&
BARZEZRERBFNEBIEEZEN -
ARRBEARETMEEHE - Bt -
B £ & A R #500,0007T # # % 2009
FRE -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

f y
} l}'_lnamttﬁi;,

25. KDBRAE (8)

2009 2008
2009 ¥ 2008 &

Ordinary Series A Ordinary Series A
shares preferred shares Total shares  preferred shares Total
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent

ZEART EEAZS
SEEER BER SEAT  ZELBER Brk SEEq
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR ARE AR% AR#

Issued and fully paid ERTRME

At beginning of the year R E 1] 616.28 252.42 868.70 61628 25242 868.70
Conversion of shares BRRH 252.42 (252.42) — — — —
Capitalisation Issue BAES 2,876.02 — 2,876.02 — — —
Exercise of share options ~ {TfPBEfix 23.56 — 23.56 — — —

Issued on public floatation Bt RSB 1T 1,198.25 — 1,198.25 — —
At end of the year RER 4,966.53 — 4,966.53 616.28 25242 868.70

Issued capital shown in the consolidated statements of financial position as at
31 December 2008 and 3| December 2009 was RMB,000 and RMB5,000

respectively.

Note:

(@)

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009, the following
took place on the listing date of |7 December 2009: (i) 30,599,999 Series A
preferred shares were converted into 30,599,999 ordinary shares of a nominal
value of USD0.000001 each;(ii) 19,400,001 unissued Series A preferred shares
were re-designated as ordinary shares of a nominal value of USD0.000001 each;
and (iii) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
USD800 divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of USD0.00000|
each to USD2,000 by the creation of an additional 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares
of par value of USD0.000001 each.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 25 November 2009, the directors
were authorised to capitalise an aggregate amount of USD421.24 standing to the
credit of the share premium of the Company and to appropriate such amount as
capital to pay up in full at par 421,234,396 shares for allotment and issue to the
persons whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 25 November 2009 in the proportion to their then existing
shareholdings in the Company, each ranking pari passu in all respects with the

then existing issued shares (“Capitalisation Issue™).

7®20085 12 A31H &2009F12A31 B R
Fa BN BRRINROE BEITRAD R
RAEY1,0007T & AR#5,0007T ©

Bt -

(a) 1REMN2009F11 B25 B BBHRE RS
R R EMZH2009F12 8178 B #17
T3 =78 ¢ ()30,699,999 AR FI| & %L
F 7 % ¥ A 30,599,999/ & i @ &
0.0000013 o R &38R ¢ (ii)19,400,001
RAREITHARYBERES 3 HE R
F R E0.000001E T EBE : &
(iii)i B 3£ £11,200,000,000 8% & % & &
0.000001E TR LR + ARAIRETE
H% 8 B3 8002 7T (% &800,000,0008% &
FR E fE0.000001 3 TT K 38 ] ) 12 1=
2,000% T °

BB N 2009411 A 258 @B R R
RE BESEREEAATRNAER
ZERERBA 4FTREER I
BZESENRABEHBRA » JAm2009
F11A26HEEERER B A AR R
REMMALTRERARAREREEE
F5 ik 2 b ol e % R B 17421,234,3960%
B ERBHRSHFEAHEERE
RN EERSER ([BRMEET]) -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

Note: (Cont'd)

(b) On |7 December 2009, 175,515,000 ordinary shares of USD0.00000| each of
the Company were issued (“New lIssue™) at HKD3.38 by way of placing and
public offer. On the same date, the Company's shares were listed on the Stock

Exchange.

Series A preferred shares

Series A preferred shares were convertible at any time at the option of the
holder into ordinary shares at RMBI.7647059 for each preferred share. Series
A preferred shares were automatically converted to ordinary shares at
RMB1.7647059 per share upon a fully underwritten initial public offering of not
less than USD6 million (before deduction of underwriters commissions and
expenses) and with a pre-offering valuation of the Company of not less than
USD30 million, which is estimated by the preferred shareholder by reference
to the valuations of other publicly traded companies in the same sector of the
Company, and the listing of the Company's ordinary shares on an
internationally reputable stock exchange reasonably acceptable to holders of
Series A preferred shares (“Qualified IPO").

The holder of each Series A preferred share has the number of votes equal to
the number of ordinary shares into which such Series A preferred share could

be converted to.

No dividends or other distributions shall be made or declared in property, or
in any other shares of the Company, with respect to any other class or series
of shares of the Company apart from the Series A preferred shares, unless and
until dividends or distributions in like amount have been paid or distributed in

full on the Series A preferred shares on an as converted basis.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the
Series A preferred shareholder shall be entitled to receive, prior and in
preference to any distribution of any of the assets or surplus funds of the
Company to the holders of the ordinary shares or any other class or series of
shares, an amount equal to RMB1.7647059 for each Series A preferred share
and, in addition, all declared but unpaid dividends (“Series A Preference
Amount"). After full payment of the Series A Preference Amount in respect of
each Series A preferred share, any remaining assets or surplus funds of the
Company shall be distributed to holders of ordinary shares and Series A

preferred shares pro rata on an as converted basis.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 26. URBZHFHNRS

Share options were granted on I5 January 2003 (“2003 Option”) and 3|
August 2005 (2005 Option”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on |5 January 2013 and 31
August 2015 respectively. Under the share option schemes of the Company,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time
to time, grant share options to an individual consultant or advisor who renders

or has rendered bona fide services to the Company.

At 31 December 2009, the number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under 2003 Option and
2005 Option was 22,107,500 (2008: 5,265,500), representing 3.13% of the
total ordinary shares of the Company (2008: 5.00% of the total ordinary and

preferred shares) in issue at end of the reporting period.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Options may be
exercised at any time from |2 months after the date of grant of the share

options to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

7 2003F 1 158 % 20054 8 A 318 Fi
R R E (5 51 A [2003F BERE] &
[2005F BRENNETZENRAESR
REREESRHERE MAZTERER
% BI#2013F 18 168 20159 8 A 31
AER - BEAABNBRETE &
AREZENRTAARER (BEAD
AREFRRINER) AIRB AR ARG
HOBEARAE  Jboh - RAR AT R R A
ERARTREEARBNENERE
P o B R 4% 1 B AR

R2009F 128318 + iR E2003F B
BER2005F BRER L ENARITENE
BRI R i) L BARE R 522,107,500
A% (20084 : 5,265,500/%) ' HARIRE
BRERBERTERRAHMNI.13%
(20085 : (FEBRBR R EBELERAHD
5.00%) °

REREERENSHERMNOHE -8B
BrEr g R EERER LS 12EA2
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

26. URBXANHRE (&)
BRENABEROFBEIMT

Exercise price
(before Capitalisation Fair value

Issue) (note) at grant date

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period TEE(RT REHAH

BRERR e =p BB 175 5 BERERT) (K& HATE

2003 Option 15/01/2003 15/01/2003 to 14/01/2007 15/01/2004 to 14/01/2013 RMBI.76 RMB0.95

2003 BEM#E 2003F1A158 2003F1A15A% 200451R158 % ARB1.76T AR#0.957T
2007618148 201318141

2005 Option ~ 31/08/2005 31/08/2005 to 30/08/2009 31/08/2006 to 30/08/2015 RMB3.66 RMBI .36

2005 BEMk#E 200548A31H 2005F8A31HZE 20068 A31HE ARE3.66T ARE1.367T

20098 A30H

2015 8H 30H

Note: the exercise prices of 2003 and 2005 option have been adjusted to RMB0.3529
and RMBO0.732, respectively, due to Capitalisation Issue.

All 2003 option and 2005 option are exercisable as to 25% of the total

number of options on the first anniversary date of grant, and as to the

remaining 75% in 36 subsequently equal monthly installments commencing on

the last day of the month following the month of the first anniversary date of

grant.
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26. UARBIZANRG (&)
TREEAEBALEENARARBR

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options held

by eligible persons during 2009: T 20094 () &
Adjustment of Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Forfeited capitalisation Exercised Expired at
at 1.1.2009 during during issue during during  31.12.2009
#2009 the year the year ¢4 the year the year 120095
|A1H RER RER B RER RER  12A3IA
Option type BRERR HARTE Rit R LAz Tt ER HATE
2003 Option 2003 FiHkE 2,750,000 — — 11,000,000  (2,550,000) — 11,200,000
2005 Option 2005 FHE R E 2,515,500 —  (I54000) 9,446,000  (900,000) — 10,907,500
5,265,500 = (154,000) 20,446,000  (3,450,000) — 22,107,500
Exercisable at the
end of the year IRER{TE 22,107,500
Exercise price 1EE
2003 Option 2003 Rk E RMBI.76 — —  RMB0.352  RMBO.352 —  RMBO0.352
2005 Option 2005 F Bk E RMB3.66 — RMB3.66  RMB0.732  RMB0.732 —  RMB0.732
EBRARAR | 125
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26. URBXANRS (8)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options held TREBSERATRANARAER
by eligible persons during 2008: TR 20084 ) &
Adjustment of Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Forfeited capitalisation Exercised Expired at
at 1.1.2008 during during issue during during  31.12.2008

20085 the year the year Ex{ the year the year 142008
1818 RER RER Bf7 RER RER 128318

Option type BRESR et Rt R ZAE i BR  HERTE
2003 Option 20035 BRE 2,750,000 — — — — — 2750000
2005 Option 2005 F MR E 2,582,500 — (67,000) — — 2515500

5,332,500 = (67,000) = — 5265500

Exercisable at the

end of the year TRERTTE 4835083
Exercise price fIfEE
2003 Option 2003 F iR 1E RMBI.76 — — — = RMBI.76
2005 Option 2005 F B MR E RMB3.66 —  RMB36 — — —  RMB36
The 2003 Option and 2005 Option were granted on |5 January 2003 and 3| 20034 #% % 1 ) 20054 B ik # 2 5 W
August 2005, respectively, with estimated fair value on the grant date of 2003% 1A 158 K& 2005 84 31H &
RMB0.95 and RMBI .36, respectively. o REREBENEFA L TESRAA

R#0.95T R ARK1.367T °
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

f y
} l}'_lnamttﬁi;,

26. UBRBEXANRZ (&)

FRRAFERGRE -HRBHREE
BRAUEE - HABLOBEMNT

2003 2005

2003 20055

Option Option

BRE fBRE

Fair value of ordinary share TRk AFE RMBI.76 RMB3.66
ARE176T AR¥3667T

Exercise price 171EE RMBI.76 RMB3.66
AR¥176 T AR¥3.667T

Expected volatility TEHR 18 78.00% 45.00%
Expected life TEH 1 5 years 6 years
b F 6

Risk-free rate 2 [ o 1) R 391% 4.57%
Expected dividend yield R E = 3.00% 3.00%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the

comparable companies’ share prices over the previous 260 trading days. The

expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s

best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations.

In relation to share options granted by the Company, the Group recognised

the total expense of RMB491,000 (2008: RMB802,000) as research and

development costs, distribution and selling expenses as well as administrative

expenses.

RHRKERAELRRARNERRE
£260ARX 5 B MELKIEETE © REFH
ANBERFHEREEEENKEM
RAATER  TERILTAEERE
VR EEHRE -

RADRBENERENS A5BE
R X A R#491,0007T (2008%F :
AR#802,0007) fE BT EKAK - 9 88
RHERTMITHAY -
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27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

27. REHERH
AEBESREA
REREK - REBERFABHEE
AHEENMLEFHIBRRZER
ST :

2009 2008

20095 20084

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETFT

Within one year —FRQ 9,607 5031
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFELF (BEEMFEREEA) 25,186 1,848
34,793 6,879

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of one to five years.

FREHENFHARATHE  HER—
ERFMESREEEE R -

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BARSE
2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TFR ARBTE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial BRAWEDE  BE X

statements in respect of the acquisition RO NERBERSE

of property, plant and equipment BB mRBENERRAX 1,899 3310

29. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local government. MOBI Shenzhen, MOBI Jian
and MOBI Xian are required to contribute 10%, 20% and 20%, respectively, of
the payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of these entities with respect to the retirement benefit scheme

is to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions made by the Group amounted
to RMB5,239,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
RMB2,533,000).
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29. RIKEFIGHE
ARENEE A BRRINBRE
BRABRGENKE - BRI - B
HERRELERED AL IEKAK
10% * 20% %20 % A & ¢ 4@ 5T &I/
MAUABBALE - ZEEBORNE
Flst Bl EERAMELETH]R -

BZE2009F12A31BLEFE  AEBE
HERABEMNGFEERAARE
5,239,000t ( 20084 AR E
2,5633,0007T) °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(2)

During the year, the Group has the following significant transactions with
Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. (RIITTH B L BRERR A
A]) which is controlled by a group of common controlling shareholders of

the Company and Weixiantong Shebei Co, Ltd. (details of which are set

out in the prospectus of the Company dated 4 December 2009).

The significant transaction between the Group and Shenzhen

Weixiantong Shebei Co., Ltd. are as follows:

f 4
} lDﬂDBlutt ﬁi;

30. BEALXRS

RER » A B ERYI TP R4 x
BREERARETUTERR
5 A EgEBREERD
Al EAR A B AR EHIRE
BRI B L BB EERDA
s (EAFREREARAR
200912 A4B HIEMBRER) -

AEBERYIHRRELBRRES
RARZENBEAZZNOT :

2009 2008

2009% 2008

RMB’000 RMB'000

Nature of transactions REMHE ARBTR ARETFT

Purchases of property,

plant and equipment BEME  HERRE = 150

Rental expenses MeEXH 727 —

2009 2008

2009%F 20084

RMB’000 RMB'000

Related party balances BEALER AR TR AR®T T

Other receivables H At 18 W BR 5K 281 209

Other payables Hoth & 15 BR K 2 2
Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand. i ERREER . 2R RRNERE

B BRARAR

2009 3}
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

were as follows:

30.

REALRE (8
b) EREEARHNEMH

ESRTIEEEEEMKENHM
s

2009 2008
20095 20084
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF R ARETT

Short-term benefits ySEEER 2,990 2,121
Post-employment benefits BER2 1A 79 19

Equity-settled share-based RS E R
payment expenses PARR 17 32 1+ 89 B 32 17 —
3,086 2,140

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of one director were paid
by Shenzhen Weixiantong Shebei Co,, Ltd. during the two years ended 3|
December 2009.
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31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 31.

As at the end of both reporting periods, the particulars of the Company's

subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued and
Place and date fully paid
of establishment

RYtHRAH

Name of subsidiary

FRARER

registered capital

EROTRAREMES

MOBI Antenna Technologies
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.
(“MOBI Shenzhen")
BERGRM (R ARAT
(TELAY]) O

MOBI Telecommunication
Technologies
(Ji An) Co, Ltd.
(“MOBI Jian")
EHBRARM (ER) BRAA
([BLEZ]) O

MOBI Technologies
(Xi An) Co, Ltd.
(“MOBI Xian")
EUMER (BR) BRAF
(ExAER])

The People’s Republic of China RMB30,000,000
(the “PRC") AR 30,000,000 70
12 August 1999

PEARANE(PE)

1999484 128

PRC RMB3,000,000
23 May 2006 AK% 3,000,000
G

20065 A23 A

PRC RMB24,000,000
29 April 2008 AE# 24,000,000 7
i

200854 A29H

()" MOBI Shenzhen and MOBI Jian are directly held by the Company.

f
} v]}'_lnamn;

ARAFTEFRARE

HEMERESPETER  ARFFL
AlFBRMT

Equity interest

attributable

to the Group

AREEERE
2008 2009
2008% 2009 %
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%

(1

Principal activities

IRER

Production and sale of
antennas and radio

frequency subsystems
EENHEEXGNER
EHATRA

Production and sale of
antennas and radio

frequency subsystems
EENHERGNER
EHRTER

Production and sale of
antennas and radio

frequency subsystems
EENBERGNER
BHBTER

BHRYRBHERGAARDEES
F o

EgRARAR | 131
2009 £ 47



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE TSR R MEE
For year ended 3| December 2009

BE2009F 12 A31 HILFE

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
(i) InJanuary 2010, 18,443,000 over-allotment shares of USD0.00000| each
in the Company at a price of HKD3.38 per share were issued pursuant

to the underwriting agreement.

(i) On 12 April 2010, a board resolution was passed pursuant to which the
Board of Directors recommended a bonus issue of | new share of
USD0.000001 each in the share capital of the Company for every 10
issued shares held by shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on | June 2010. The bonus issue is
conditional upon the passing of the relevant resolutions at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and the approval granted by Listing

Committee of the Stock Exchange.

MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
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32. KERKER

(i)

(ii)

2010511 - BREBHBEEER
K133BETLHBHRETARAA
18,443,000k & A% H {£0.000001 3
TH BB ERD -

2010647128 EE€RB*RE
£ BERRN2010F6818A5IAK
ARIRRAMOBREETAR - &
EEGHB10REBEITRMD AT ER
AR ERA A 1R EE0.000001%
TR o BITHRBFERR
REFRgRBAEMAZRBEH
RFFETEEGHESAEER -

.
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MOBI Development Co., Ltd.
E L #&REER-AFA

Eh&xEER QA
MOBI Development Co., Ltd.

Add adlmELE S ERMmEXEIL R L —EELKRE
MOBI Building, 7 Langshan First Road, Science and Technology Park,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel 1 86-755-86186100

E-Mail : public@mobi-antenna.com

website : www.mobi-antenna.com .
P.C 1 518057 www.mobi-antenna.com
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